NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE
i THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK
Board of Trustees October/November Meeting Agenda

11:00 a.m. | Friday, November 22", 2019
Saranac Lake Campus | HH-105

l. Call to Order
Il Oath of Office | Student Trustee
. Approval September 2019 Minutes

V. Liaison Reports
A. College Senate
B. NCCCAP
C. CSEA

V. College Reports

A. Board Chair
o Update | Board of Trustees By-Laws
B. Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs
0 2019-2020 | #3: Appointment — Nursing Instructor
0 2019-2020 | #4: Appointment — Science Instructor
Vice President for Marketing & Enrollment Management
Vice President for Administration & Fiscal Operations
President
Representative Reports
o NCCC Association
0 NCCC Foundation
VI. Old Business
VII. New Business
A. NCCC Lactation Policy
B. December 20", 2019 Board Meeting

mTmon

VIII. Public Comment*
IX. Executive Session
X. Adjourn

An Executive Session of the Board of Trustees may be called pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officer’s Law to discuss the Medical, financial, credit or
employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline,
suspension, dismissal, or removal of a particular person or corporation and collective bargaining negotiations conducted pursuant to Article 14 of the
Civil Service Law. (Public Officers Law §105).* Public Comment: Visitors are requested to sign in before the beginning of the meeting. Provision is
‘made at this point in the agenda for citizens of the community to make comments regarding any agenda item to be discussed at that meeting.
Citizens will not be recognized at any other time. No person, not a member of the Board, shall speak for more than five (5) minutes. The minutes shall
show that privifege of the floor was granted and shall include a brief statement of the subject matter presented. '



North Country Community College
Oath of Office

| do solemnly affirm that | will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of New York, and that | will faithfully discharge the duties as
a member of the Board of Trustees of North Country Community College
according to the best of my ability. And | do further solemnly affirm that | have not
directly or indirectly paid, offered or promised to pay, contributed or offered or
promised to contribute, any money or other valuable thing as a consideration or
reward for the giving or withholding a vote at the election if any at which | was
elected or appointed to said office, and have not made any promise to influence the
giving or withholding of any such vote.

Sign name here:

Type name as signed above.

Affirmed and subscribed to before me on this day:

month day year

Signature of Notarial Officer: AFFIX NOTARY SEAL/STAMP HERE



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

Board of Trustees Minutes | Friday, September 27, 2019 | Saranac Lake Campus

Board Members Present: Steve Reed, Tim Burpoe, Mary Irene Lee, Pete Suttmeier, Jerry Griffin, Anne McDonald.

Excused: Mark Moeller and Dan Kelleher

Others Present: Joe Keegan, Stacie Hurwitch, Bob Farmer, Sarah Maroun, Chris Knight, Erik Harvey, Shir Filler, Lee Susice,

Kyle Johnston, Lisa Symonds, Diana Fortune, Sandra Gothard, David St. Germain.

Board Chair, Steve Reed, called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.

Meeting Minutes

Anne McDonald moved to approve the August 2019 meeting minutes as they were shared. Tim Burpoe seconded the

motion. The August 2019 meeting minutes were approved unanimously. (6-0-0).

NCCCAP
Lee Susice reported:

- Labor Management recently met with the NCCCAP team. There was progress made with updating MOUs.

College Senate
Shir Filler reported:

- Senate will be addressing a new method of use regarding emails.

CSEA

No report.

Board Chair Report

Steve Reed reported:

September 27, 2019 Board of Trustees Minutes | Page 1 of 4



- Both Steve Reed and Pete Suttmeier attended the session with the Middle States Liaison regarding the upcoming self-
study report which the College is due to work on and complete by 2021. The board will work together on what needs to

be done by their group. Working group VIi will need a representative.

Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs

Sarah Maroun reported:
- Sarah Maroun shared with the board a list of 16 different degree programs and certificates and their potential fit with
the College.
* For each program Selina LeMay-Klippel rated the feasibility both long/short term to intreduce these to the
College.
* Kyle Johnston and Selina LeMay-Klippel are connecting to investigate these items further. Selina will be working
with faculty and departments as well.
* Members of the Board spoke briefly about the potential for a Cyber Security major.
* The board will be regularly updated on the progress of these potential programs.
- During his recent visit, Bob Bonfiglio, the Colleges Middle States representative, was impressed by the knowledge of the

board. Across the board he was happy to see those present were on board and eager to work on the project.

Vice President for Marketing and Enrollment Management

Kyle Johnston was welcomed to the College by Steve Reed and the Board.
- Kyle has been pleased with the College and the Community thus far. His experience has been welcoming and positive.
He’s frequently visiting the campuses and speaking with the College Community on how to continue the forward

momentum of the College.

Vice President for Administration/CFO:

Bob Farmer reported:

Condense Bob’s email

- 18/19 on hold — forecast remains the same and expects no significant changes

- 19/20 outlook — ftes short. Team has met frequently and has refocused and developed a budget at 945. Should exceed
tuition revenue

- some budgets ear marked. Leaving scme left to balance the budget.

- Strategic initiatives were mentioned. More soccer players, increase out of state student scholarships increased 42 to 67.
Adult learners coming in (st. joes rehab, etc.)

- Work from Kyle will be instrumental in the success in these new initiatives.

September 27, 2019 Board of Trustees Minutes | Page 2 of 4



- Board spoke briefly regarding College Bridge, Second Chance Pell, credentialing/certifications, and our current retention

rates.

- Sarah will look into school districts which are not maximizing the Bridge Program — there is a big incentive that goes both

ways.

NCCC Foundation:

No report.

NCCC Association:

Bob Farmer reported that today is Beth Quinns last day. A new director, Shannon Warren, has been hired and is due to
being in November 1%, 2019. Bob Farmer, Lisa Symonds and Kim Irland will manage the duties of the position until

Shannon begins.

The board thanked her for hard work and dedication to the College.

President’s Report:

Joe Keegan reported:

- Joe shared with the board a document identifying NCCC Board of Trustees appointments dating back to 1966. The
board discussed the findings and discussed its accuracy. It was noted that a student trustee should be voted upon in the
coming week by the student body. Jim Brooks will be reviewing and an update will be sent out to the board soon. The
board discussed the progress in the vacancy. Joe will reach out to Beth (SUNY Legal) for support.

- Joe shared with the board the College’s revised the Mission/Vision/Values and discussed the importance of the new
revision. President’s Council, College Senate and other entities of the College community were involved in this new
proposed mission. The board discussed the proposal and highlighted the need to include student success. This will be
revisited in a month.

- Joe shared with the board the strategic opportunities that were discussed at the beginning of the academic year with
the College community. The board discussed the document and the importance of the board being involved in the
planning aspects moving forward.

- Joe shared that Bob Farmer has been leading weekly meetings discussing the budget and initiatives of the College, and

that Kyle Johnston is leading a task force on enrollment and marketing initiatives weekly as well.

Old Business

Steve Reed discussed the suggested revision to the BoT meeting by-laws. There is a significant change is the committee

structure. The board discussed the revisions. Members of the board had no objections to the proposed revisions. Steve

will work with Stacie regarding these updates.

September 27, 2019 Board of Trustees Minutes | Page 3 of 4



New Business

Joe Keegan reported there are new Chairs and Vice Chairs for the SUNY Board of Trustees.

Executive Session

lerry Griffin made the motion to enter Executive Session at 11:55 a.m. in relation to collective bargaining negotiations
conducted pursuant to Article 14 of the Civil Service Law; and the medical, financial, credit or employment history of a
particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline,
suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person or corporation. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion. The motion

was passed unanimously (6-0-0). Joe Keegan was invited to join the meeting at 11:55 a.m.

Jerry Griffin made a motion to adjourn executive session at 1:40p.m. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion. The motion

was approved unanimously (6-0-0).

Adjourn
Jerry Griffin made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion. The motion was approved

unanimously (6-0-0). The Board meeting was adjourned at 1:40 p.m.
Respectfully Submitted,

%@b@b

Stacie G. Hurwitch

Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees

DRAFT

Friday, October 25%, 2019
Motion:
Second:

Action:

September 27, 2019 Board of Trustees Minutes | Page 4 of 4



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

F THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

VPAA Report to the Board of Trustees
October 25, 2019

Please find the report from the Academic Area below.

* Academic Planning, Programs and Policies:
o Academic Planning

o New Program Initiatives: Selina LeMay-Klippel provided a wealth of options for us to
consider while moving new academic programs forward. Currently, we are soliciting
input from departments and the college community regarding short and long-term plans
for pursuing new programs.

o Waorkforce Development/ Continuing Ed: Dave St. Germain and Selina Le-May
Klippel hosted a job fair on October 10" at the Ticonderoga campus. Jane
Carpenter recently attended a workforce development event at Clinton
Community College on September 30" and a Birth to Three Alliance Forum on
October 17.

o St. Regis Mohawk Tribe: Three courses are scheduled for Akwesasne in Spring of
2020.

o Academic Programs: No recent updates
o AA Lib Arts and Sciences — Hum/Soc Science — Early Childhood/Childhood Teacher Ed
Track: The Humanities and Social Science departments are reviewing the updated
worksheets.
o Advanced EMT: We are awaiting Mountain Lakes EMS to review the updated agreement
which we need for NYSED to approve the proposal.

o  Continuing Education: No recent updates
o Swim Lessons and Water Aerobics: Swim lessons are very popular and we have 90 children
currently enrolled ranging from 6 months to 10 years old. Another session begins in
November with ages 11 and up. Water aerobics is also popular with anywhere from 15-18
people per class.
o Pottery: The first of two evening sessions is currently underway with the second beginning
on October 29%.

o Middle States/ Assessment of Student Learning:
= Program Review: Three program reviews are underway this upcoming
academic year: AAS Radiologic Technology, AAS Chemical Dependency
Counseling, and AAS Human Services.
= MSCHE Self-Study:
* Dr. Robert A. Bonfiglio visited on September 26™ and met with various
members of the College community. He made some suggestions to the
Steering Committee regarding the Institutional Priorities that we
previously identified and voted on as a Senate. The recommendation is to
include a commitment to establishing a “culture of assessment” across the
institution in lieu of “Enhancing Student Success.” We will work with the
Steering Committee to revise those priorities and would like the Senate’s
input on moving forward. We submitted the final draft of the Self-Study
Design on October 14™.



e Revised Institutional Priorities:

» Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in education
and guides the College’s daily operations and strategic planning

» Expanding community engagement through partnerships and enhancing
community integration

» Improving financial sustainability through increasing enrollment and
retention

o College Bridge: On October 25", we will host College Bridge faculty on campus for a workshop.

e Professional Development: Dave St. Germain is offered a professional development
workshop Friday, October 4™ from 9:00-9:50 titled Using Assessment Results to Enhance
Student Learning. Future sessions include online pedagogy. SUNY is hosting two events
that may be of interest: Student Support Summit on October 28-30 and a Holistic Student
Support conference on Nov. 7-8". These are related to the SUNY initiatives on student
access and completion. For those faculty members who attended the On Course
workshop this summer, there is a follow-up meeting on November 1* to discuss how
faculty have used strategies learned at the workshop. All are welcome to attend.

o Academic Policies: No updates.

* Grants and Experiments:
Here is a brief update on our grants:

o Strong Start to Finish Grant: Improving retention and student success will be a recurring
theme for us. We used some of this grant funding to host an On Course workshop in
August. For this academic year, we will be focused on revisiting a first-year seminar/first-
year experience program. SUNY has awarded us some seed money to plan and implement
that program over the next two years. Kate Wells, Learning Assistance Coordinator in
Malone will facilitate this process.

o Second Chance: Classes continue at FCI, Bare Hill, and Franklin Correctional Facilities.

o P-TECH Programs — Current enrollment across four cohorts is at 54 students: 15 seniors, 7
juniors, 8 sophomores, and 24 freshmen. We’ve added a Criminal Justice pathway, which

has generated a lot of interest.
Respectfully submitted,

Sarah Maroun



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

RESOLVED

October 25, 2019

2019-2020 | #3

Motion:
Seconded:

RESOLUTION

the VP of Academic Affairs recommends the first
temporary appointment of Sarah Updegraft, to the
full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing
Instructor for the Spring 2020 semester at a pro-
rated salary of $22,895.55.

the President hereby concurs in this
recommendation,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

that the North Country Community College Board of
Trustees hereby approves the first temporary
appointment of Sarah Updegraft, to the full-time,
164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing Instructor
for the Spring 2020 semester at a pro-rated salary
of $22,895.55.

This position is currently funded in the 2019/20
operating budget. In accordance with the current
NCCCAP agreement Article VIl-Appointment and
Promotions, this appointment will expire at the
conclusion of the 2019/20 academic year and will
not be renewed.

Postion: Approved/Not Approved/Postponed

(0-0-0)



'NORTH COUNTRY.

September 17, 2018

Sarah Updegraft
455 Forest Hill
Saranac Lake, NY 12983

Dear Sarah:

Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their October 25,
2019 meeting, | am pleased to offer you a temporary, full time, exempt appointment as Nursing
Instructor for the spring 2020 semester. Faculty members are expected to report on lanuary 21,
2020. Your immediate supervisor is Sandy Gothard, Nursing Program Director and your area
supervisor is Sarah Maroun, Vice President for Academic Affairs.

As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) bargaining
unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining agreement (CBA}
between the Cotlege and NCCCAP. Should you accept this appointment, your pay grade for this
appointment is Step 11 on Schedule C of the 2019-2021 CBA, which is $45,239. Your per-diem rate
based on 164 days is $275.85. As this appointment is for the spring 2020 semester, which as 83 days,
your total wage for this appointment is $22,895 .55,

Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations without their
consent. Your base campus is Saranac Lake.

To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no later
than September 30, 2019.

Sincerely,

Joo Feago—

joe Keegan,
President

cc: Personnei/Payroll File

Lz A _a|zald

Employee ngnature - Date



Sarah E. Updegraft

426 NJackson St. » Media, P4 19063 « (610) 368-0750 » sarah.updegrafi@hotmail.com

EpucaTioN

FRONTIER NURSING UNIVERSITY August 2006-January 2009
MBSN in Nurse Midwifery and Women's Health
Currently licensed as:

Registered Nurse and Centified Nurse Midwife in the state of Delaware

Registered Nurse and Women's Health Nurse Practitioner in the state of Pennsylvania

CLEVELAND STATE UNIVERSITY, Cleveland, OH

BS in Nursing (accelerated BSN program) May 2002- August 2003
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA, Philadelphia, PA August 1992-December 1995
BA in Cultural Anthropology / Minor in Latin American Studies

EXPERIENCE —
THE FOUNDATION FOR DELAWARE COUNTY, Chester, PA January 2017-Present

NURSE-FAMILY PARTNERSHIP

*  Bilingual Nurse-Home Visitor for first-time at-risk mothers/families in Delaware County

Maintain caseload of 25 families

Provide pregnancy, postpartum, family planning and parenting support, education, and resources

Assist mothers with goal planning

Provide mental health, substance abuse, and developmental screenings and referrals

Member of NFP Client Engagement and Retention and Mental Health Innovations Advisory Committees
Attend and report back on area meetings and relevant trainings

® & o & & @

THE BIRTH CENTER: HOLISTC WOMEN'S HEALTH CARE, Wilmington, DE  March 2009-January 2017
Certified Nurse Midwife at free-standing birth center

Provide AP, IP, and PP care / management for low risk women

Maintain close working relationship and communication with back-up OB/GYNs

Provide labor support for high risk women / transfers in hospital setting

Provide well-woman and problem GYN care

Provide family planning counseling, options counseling, and STI screening

Proficient with IUD insertions and trained in Nexplanon insertions

s & o 0 & &

THE BIRTH CENTER, Bryn Mawr, PA November 2004-April 2008

»  Registered Nurse at free-standing birth center

¢ Provided labor support and assist midwives with vaginal births

s Assessment and care of mother and newbom through 12 hour postpartum stay, including vital signs,
medications, lab work, and breastfeeding support

e Discharge teaching of matemal and newbomn assessments, vital signs, and postpartum care

¢  Completed home visits to families 2-3 days postpartum

e  Assisted in compiling monthly statistics of birth outcomes

¢  Co-taughi The Birth Center's 4-week series Childbirth Preparation Classes for first-time parents

THOMAS JEFFERSON UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL, Philadelphia, PA September 2003-April 2005

¢ Graduate Nurse (September-November), Registered Nurse (November-April 2005) on Labor and Delivery Unit
*  On-going assessment, care of, and teaching for well and high-risk pregnant women from admission through
delivery (emergent and non-emergent / vaginal and cesarian section) and discharge to the postpartum unit
Support of women through the birthing experience
Immediate postpartum and newbom care
Responsible for completing computer and paper intake assessments, generating individualized Plans of Care,
and documenting/communicating assessment findings
® Maintained ethical and team-based approach communication with other pariners in care



METROHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER, Cleveland, OH December 2002-July 2003

»

® 6 @

Clinical Assistant on Postpartum Unit

Performed maternal and newborn vital signs, newborn heel sticks for blood tests, and maternal blood draws
Conipleted newborn feedings, weights, and baths

Assisted mothers with basic postpartum and breast-feeding needs and teaching

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE CENTER, Cleveland, OH June 2001-November 2002

o & o ° @

Women’s Advocate at domestic violence emergency shelter-for women and children

Carried a caseload of four families, completing imakes, family needs assessment, and crisis counseling
Assisted women with medical, legal, housing, and employment referrals

Maintained security of house during evening shifts

Answered crisis calls on domestic violence hotline, involving counseling, making referrals, and bringing
families into sheiter '

SAFEPLACE, Austin, TX August 1999-May 2001

L ]

Bilingual Family Advocate and Legal Specialist at domestic violence emergency shelter for women and
children

Carried a caseload of six families, completing intakes, initial needs assessments, and crisis counseling
Assisted women with medical, legal, housing, and employment needs

Assisted women in petitioning for and receiving Orders of Protection

Court accompaniment

MILESTONES HUMAN SERVICES, San Francisco, CA October 1997-April 1998

Administrative Assistant at nonprofit residential drug and alcohol rehabilitation facility
Updated and maintained client files in database

Compiled weekly office billing and monthly program billing for County and State contracts
Recorded minutes at staff and house meetings

Maintained correspondence with various community organizations

Scheduled and planned house and community events

Extensive contact and interaction with adult drug offender population

CERTIFICATIONS N —

BASIC LIFE SUPPORT FOR HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS
INFANT MASSAGE EDUCATOR (PCE, NOVEMBER 2018)
TRAUMA INFORMED CARE PROVIDER (Lakeside Global Institute, February 2019}

References available upon request.



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

RESOLVED

RESOLUTION

the VP of Academic Affairs recommends the first
temporary appointment of Jamie Strough, to the full-
time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Science
Instructor for the Spring 2020 semester at a pro-
rated salary of $20,881.97.

the President hereby concurs in this
recommendation,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

that the North Country Community College Board of
Trustees hereby approves the first temporary
appointment of Jamie Strough, to the full-time, 164-
day, exempt appointment as Science Instructor for
the Spring 2020 semester at a pro-rated salary of
$20,881.97.

This position is currently funded in the 2019/20
operating budget. In accordance with the current
NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment and
Promotions, this appointment will expire at the
conclusion of the 2019/20 academic year and will
not be renewed.

November 22, 2019

2019-20 | #4

Motion:
Seconded:
Action:
Vote:



COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK _ -

i NORTH COUNTRY

October 24, 2018

Jamie Strough
22 Broadway
Saranac Lake, NY 12983

Dear Jamie:

Pending approval by the North Country Community College Board of Trustees at their November,
2019 meeting, 1 am pleased to offer you a temporary, full time, exempt appointment as Instructor
for the Science Department for the spring 2020 semester. Faculty members are expected to report
onlJanuary 21, 2020. Your department chair and immediate supervisor is Rich Martin, Professor.
Your area supervisor is Sarah Maroun, Vice President for Academic Affairs.

As a member of the North Country Community College Association of Professionals (NCCCAP) bargaining
unit, your compensation and benefits are detailed in your collective bargaining agreement (CBA)
between the College and NCCCAP. Should you accept this appointment, your pay grade for this
appointment is Step 18 on Schedule C of the 2019-2021 CBA, which is $41,260. Your per-diem rate
based on 164 days is $251.59. As this appointment is for the fall 19 semester, which as 83 days, your
total wage for this appointment is $20,881.97.

Professional staff members shall not be assigned to more than two campus locations without their
consent. Your base campus is Sararaedsie Aalo+ ( I@ ,,,,,

To acknowledge the terms of your appointment, sign and return this Letter of Appointment no later

than November 15, 2019.

Sincerely,

Joe Keegan,
President

cc: Pegsonnel/Payroll File




Jamie Strough

22 Broadway, Saranac Lake, NY 12983
(518) 593-3217
Jamie.Strough@Gmail.com

Diagneostic Laboratory Technician
Diagnostic laboratory technician for a mycoplasma testing laboratory with biology-focused teaching experience as
well as a combination of biological and chemical faboratory experience seeking a position for the expansion of my
professional career.

EDUCATION

Clarkson University Potsdam, NY
Master of Science, Basic Science December 2010

Clarkson University Potsdam, NY
Bachelor of Science, Bio-Molecular Science May 2008

EXPERIENCES & ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Teaching

A total of 20 months served as an instructor for an introductory level biology laboratory course. Experiences included
teaching and designing/testing laboratory activities associated with biological diversity studies as well as those applicable
to microbiology, protein purification, PCR techniques, taxonomic studies, bioinformatics analysis techniques, and general
cellular and molecular biology.

Graduate Level Research/Projects

Assisted with researching a scientific review article regarding Human Papillomavirus and Innate Immunity. Conducted a
literature based study of genes associated with human development resulting in a scientific review of current knowledge
on gonad development eutitled Separating Mule from Female: A Minj-Review of the Genes Associared with Sexual
Differentiation and Gonad Development.

Publications

Co-authored a research article entitled Impact of Aerobicity on Mollicute Colony Growth on Agar published in Advances
in Biotechnologv & Microbiology Volume §, Issue 2. February 2018.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Diagnostic Laboratory Technician 11/2015 - Current
Bionique Testing Laboratories Inc.. Saranac Lake, NY

e Prepare, inoculate, and monitor client test samples and control organisms to determine the presence of mycoplasma
species via direct culture methods.

e Perform indicator cell culture assay (ICCA) methods including preparation, fixation, staining, and fluorescent

diagnostic microscopy to detect mycoplasma or other contaminant presence in samples.

Maintain positive cell lines (Vero and [H1) for production of control slides utilized in ICCA methods.

Perform and maintain documentation for weekly tracking/trending analysis of positive controls and provide monthly

reports of organism performance.

Grow, maintain, and aliquot mycoplasma reference standards for use as positive control stock organisms,

Maintain parental organism, control stock organism, and R&D organism dilution lineage and documentation,

Execute R&D protocols as per client request.

Assist Laboratory Director with process improvement testing as requested.

Perform sample login, inspection, and release for testing activities upon arrival.

Author, update, and review site SOPs relevant to the Diagnostic Laboratory.

Serve as a backup/supplemental assistant for the Media Preparation Department.

Perform documentation practices in accordance with company SOPs and cGMP guidelines.

& 6 © &6 & 6 9 @

Media Preparation Technician 0572014 - 12/2015

Bionique Testing Laboratories Inc., Saranac Lake, NY

e Prepared/sterilized glassware and formulated media, buffers, and other solutions for use in the mycoplasma testing
of cell cultures, raw materials, and biopharmaceutical products following cGMP procedures.

e Conducted in-process and qualification testing as needed in media/solution preparations.

e Operated laboratory equipment including autoclaves, glassware washers, pH meters, peristaitic pumps, filtering
apparatus, Avanti J Series centrifuges, and microcentrifuges.

e Participated in Biosafety Level 2 Mycoplasma pneumoniae Antigen production project.

e Authored, updated, and reviewed site SOPs relevant to the Media Preparation Department.

e Maintained testing data records and inventory of laboratory consumables.



@ Performed raw material -+ >ling, growth promotion testing, and inspection/release of incoming materials, reagents,
equipmemnt, etc.

e Performed documentation practices in accordance with ¢cGMP guidelines, 1. _ macking/trending analysis, record
maintenance, and procedure/method preparation.

Laboratory Analyst 04/2013 - 05/2014
Asept Pak Inc., Malone, NY

¢  Performed sampling and testing of the PW and Clean Steam systems, Testing methods consisted of: Microbial
Heterotropic Plate Counts, Total Organic Carbon analysis, Conductivity testing, Bacterial Endotoxin testing, Total
Chlorine testing, and Total Hardness testing.

Performed in-process and finished product testing for salinity, brix, microbial bioburden, and sterility.
Environmental monitoring of areas within the facility including cleanrooms, hoods, and production areas.
Maintained stock cultures, testing data records, and inventory of laboratory consumables.

Performed raw material sampling, growth promotion testing, and inspection/release of incoming materials, reagents,
equipment, etc.

Performed documentation practices in accordance with GLP's, test tracking/trending analysis, record maintenance,
and procedure/method preparation.

®© o 0 0

Adjunct Instructor 06/2011 — 12/2012
ITT Technical Institute, Lake Mary, FL

e Provided instruction on the basic theories and techniques of microbiology as relating to preparation for a career in
nursing.

e Prepared, tested, and oversaw laboratory experiments as well as unit quizzes and exams.

Created and maintained a laboratory inventory system for course documents and laboratory supplies.

e Maintained an updated faculty development file consistently available for, and in accordance with, requirements for
accreditation board review.

Laboratory Instructor 01/2009 — 1272010

Clarkson University, Potsdam, NY

¢  Performed laboratory preparation and clean-up procedures on a weekly basis.

e " Assisted with development and testing of laboratory activities.

¢ Instructed students on proper laboratory techniques as related to: preparation of solutions, cell culturing, biochemical
manipulation, microbiological analysis, the analysis of nucleic acids and proteins, basic bioinformatics, and
evolutionary analysis methods.

o  Provided office hours outside of designated class times for additional student assistance,

e Attended weekly instructional meetings.

o Tended to cultures and incubations during non-designated class/meeting hours.

Quality Control Analyst 08/2008 - 11/2008

Regeneron Pharmaceuticals, Rensselaer, NY

® Obtained daily samples from production facilities to determine the quality of the air, surfaces, and water.

e Conducted GMP quality testing of samples from production environment as well as product samples. Methods
included: pour plate preparations, membrane filtration of water samples, and various microbial growth procedures.

e Utilized a Laboratory Information Management System for compilation and comparison of sample/testing data.

®  Monitored proper gowning procedures among employees within the production facilities.

INTERESTS, EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES, AND VOLUNTEER WORK

Theta Phi Alpha Alumnae Association of Northern and Central New York
Member: January 2010 — December 2011

Theta Phi Alpha Fraternity
Member: 2007 — present
Corresponding Secretary, Risk Manager, Parliamentarian, and Ceremony Chair: 2007 - 2008

United Way of the Adirondack Region
Volunteer: 2005 — present

North Country Mission of Hope
Volunteer/Missioner: 2003-2005



THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Vice President - Marketing and Enrollment
Report to the Board of Trustees
Created October 18, 2019

Today I've finished up my 6" week of work at NCCC and I've been able to connect 1 on 1 with most of the
departmental leadership. We’ve been focusing our discussions on what’s working and what's not. I'm happy to
report that most have been very open-minded regarding the changes/improvements that I'd like to make.

Admissions Team Updates:

The entire admissions team continues to complete Fall college fairs and high school visits. Our own college
fair on October 3™ brought in over 300 students.

Once the admissions team returns, we will wark on developing a Strategic Communications Plan which will
outline the communication that will happen with all newly acquired prospects and applicants.

I’'m communicating weekly with Customer Relationship Management (CRM) providers seeking an affordable
product to improve customer service processes throughout the entire student lifecycle. Students do
experience the run-around here at NCCC and we need to shore that up.

m looking at all enrollment processes to get us to a point where they are seamless from a student’s first
contact with us through their first day of class.

We are working to find better ways to generate new prospects and applicants organically instead of relying
on purchased lists. We will have a smaller pool to work with but we will be able to do a better job of
relationship building with them.

Our spring 2020 focus has been to work extensively with non-traditional students/veterans and to also work
with students that were no-shows for Fall semester. No-shows have all been contacted with the majority
committing to either Spring or Fall 2020 semesters.

Communications and Marketing Team Updates:

Our biggest efforts need to be dedicated to the nccc.edu website. It needs to become much more user
friendly and eventually be our biggest marketing tool. I'm working with Workshop on search engine
optimization and a plan for search engine marketing in the future.

I've reached out to 4 website developers to get opinions on the current state of our website. My assessment
is that we need to create a strategy for how it will be used in the future. This is extensive work but will help
to make sure that it is sustainable and modern well into the future.

We've started work on the landing pages for /apply, /request, and /visit which will become some of our
most frequently visited web pages. We need to make this much easier for prospective students and
applicants to self-serve.

Financial Aid Team Updates:

We have cancelled our contract with PowerFAIDs so that we can focus on building out CAMS (our current
student information system) correctly. This funding will be re-purposed to provide better resources for
students working through the financial aid process. I've been in contact with a company named Ocelot
regarding their financial aid videos, chat bots and other resources.

Departmental cross-training will begin with Admissions staff in November. I’'m planning to do cross-training
sessions with admissions, financial aid, business office and registrar’s office in the next two months. This will
help move us towards a “one stop shop” model! for customer service.



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

’ THE STATE URIVERSITY OF NEW YBRK

NCCC Google Analytics
Week of 10-1-19 thru 10-7-18
Top 50 Hits
Pageviews — This is the number of times users view & page that has the Google Anaivtics tracking code inserted This covers all page
views; so if a user refreshes the page, or navigstes away from the paga and returns, these are alf counted as additionat page views.

Unigue Pageviews - The unique pageview numner counts eff the times the page was viewsed in an indhvidug! session a8 a single
event: so whether g visitor viewed the page onice in their visit or five imes, the number of unique pageviews will be recorded ag just
one.

Avg. Time on Page ~ Time on page represents the sverage amount of time in seconds, - visitor spends on a particujar page.
Technically it reprosents the time befween the start time of a given Pageview and the stant ime of the subsequent Pageview or Event.

Entrances — Enfrance represents the number of visits thet sterted on a specific web page or group of web pages.

Bounce Rate - Bounce rate /s given as d percentage, and represents the humber of visits when users ieave your site after just one
page: regardiess of how they got 1o your site or how fang they stayed on thel page.

13,470 11,340 00:02.49 8058 72.87%
ey onl Totsd, A Vi f T hvg o Ve
e R0 0 e ErY i
A, RS
Il 2. 028LERA 6D 000355 BESL T 2.40%
2. Abrarydinda brral B8 FBey 27504t 00:07:32 2m0F 7241%
i 3. degreeindexling 3880 et} 398 00:60:44 30 - ‘56,45?%;
4, epistemtiondinder. bt FELLL B 20257 000116 3.0 273 |
5. ‘office-obacademic-affaiy indes bml 188150 141 oaul00 13 S83me
Page Fagecions Thigue Papniews  Avg TeeonPage  Fmtenwoey Boance Rate
13470 11,340 0&0‘%;49 8058  72.87%
" of Tiotl: o fot o ¢
10.00%
136
6, fuisieons sden il 188 163300 O%02:42 32 o 75.18%
¥ T C3-how-pre-Hosssing-caurse 14T 00 332,08 00402 126 . 91.27% %
B smonsc-dakednder bl e £ 1387 06:01:39 4 BRII%
T 9. ‘mews-events syim-lessoms-Zill-1 8 letvnl 18 h ¥4 13 08:01:20 13 1. RS D2.20%

10,  academsic-calendarinden bim) 126000 160 000508 3 S3E7



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

Vice President - Marketing and Enrollment
Report to the Board of Trustees
Created November 17, 2019

This month our focus has shifted towards the push for spring term enrollments. We’ve worked the no-show
students for fall, spring semester prospects/applicant/accepted students and kicked-off our newest marketing
campaign. Additionally, we have been reaching out to external entities to help open the doors for adult learners and
veterans which are the groups that have the highest potential to start spring semester.

Enroliment Team Updates:

The Enrollment Team is starting to wrap-up the fall college and high school visit schedule. They’re now
shifting focus towards secondary visits within our region and planning for spring.

Our strategic communications plan will be built organically over the course of the next year. We will add
communication and marketing campaigns that bear fruit to the plan as we go. By this time next year we will
have a formalized 2021-2022 plan.

| continue to meet with outside providers to help with our technology needs that will improve customer
service pracesses throughout the entire student lifecycle. Students do experience the run-around here at
NCCC and we will shore that up.

We have now booked a college-wide customer service training (Fred Pryor) for January 10t that is aimed at
a student’s first contact with us through their first day of class and beyond.

So far, our spring numbers of applicants and prospects are down which is strategic and not a short-fall.
We're working with smaller pools of students and are already yielding more actual accepted students
because the work is becoming more focused.

PowerFAIDs contract has been canceled and the focus has shifted towards building out CAMS (our current
student information system) to a greater level. This funding will be re-purposed to provide better resources
for students working through the financial aid process. I've been in contact with a company named Ocelot
regarding their financial aid videos, chat bots and other resources.

EXPRESS ENROLLMENT: Last year’s first event: 9 students. This year’s first event: 23 students

Marketing and Web Team Updates:

We have continued to build out the new program pages as well as the /apply, /request and /visit pages. We
also brought together the folks from the LAC’s this past Friday to talk about their overall marketing and web
presence for the future. We will be working with them for a re-branding of their support services to help
drive more traffic their way.

Work has begun to develop Strategic Enroliment Management plans for 5 program areas: Business, Human
Services, Massage Therapy, Criminal Justice and Wilderness Recreation Leadership. The plans will include
tactics to boost enroliment as well as new marketing plans focused solely on these programs. The goal is to
have them all put together by the end of this calendar year so promotional activities can roll out this spring.
Web content continues to be a struggle so we will be bringing all Content Managers together on December
5% for a training. The goal is to have less content managers so we can focus in on their training. Thisisa
specialty, so it needs to become a bigger part of their jobs.



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

EXPRESS ENROLLME

THE STATE UKIVERSITY OF NEW YORK
¥
¥

m North Country Community een
b’ College NORTH COUNTRY
Sponsorag - ¢ COMMUNITY
COLLEGE
Time for a fresh start? 2020 is your year. Visit THF STATE HMVERSITY OF KFW YIRK
Malone, Saranac Lake or Ticonderoga from 9
am - 12 pm on November 16, ...Bee More

EXPRESS
ENROLLMENT

» NDV, 16
» DEC. T
> JAN. 21

N\ gl

NCCC.EDU/REGISTER

Express Enroliment LEARN MORE

Enroll at one of our on-campus e...

00> 1 Comment 6 Shares

E{b Like C) Comment #> Share

NORTH COUNTRY GET A

COMMUNITY COLLEGE
START.

HE STAIE U 31 OF




NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA

North Country Community College
President’s Report to the Board of Trustees
October 25, 2019

Greetings to you all. Midterm exams are behind us, College Bridge is largely wrapped-up for the
year and Halloween is just around the corner. We are all hoping for treats rather than tricks this
All Hallows Eve. I hope this finds you well.

* Campus and External Relations
As the Board knows, I have been making a concerted effort to get out and about and meet
with folks from across the region in support of the College and our work. Over the past
couple of months, these have included:

Date With Location
9/3/2019 Doug Haney, Ken Aaron, Kelly Hofscheider — Great Saranac Lake, NY
Range LLC ;
9/5/2019 SUNY and US Navy Regional Discussion on Sexual | New York, NY
I | Assault and Sexual Harassment |
9/6/19 | Franklin Correctional Graduation Ceremony | Malone, NY B
1 9/9/10 | Barbara Tagg, Adk Children’s Choir Saranac Lake, NY
9/10/19 NCCC Foundation Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
' 9/10/19 Malone Campus Visit with Kyle Johnston Malone, NY
9/11/19 Greg Janisewski, Vice-Chair of Franklin County Board | Chateaugay, NY
of Legislators
9/12/2019 Dr, Ty Stone, President of Jefferson Community Saranac Lake, NY
College
9/12/2019*% SL Chamber of Commerce Welcome Event _| Saranac Lake, NY
| 9/13/2019 Bare Hill Correctional Graduation Ceremony Malone, NY
| 9/16/2019 Richard Merchant, President, New York State Saranac Lake, NY
Association for Rural Health |
| 9/17/2019 Adirondack Planned Giving Society Donor Panel Lake Placid, NY
9/19/2019 | Bob Barlow, President, RMB Marketing Saranac Lake, NY
9/20/2019 Willie Janeway, Executive Director, Adirondack Malone, NY
Council and Joe Pete Wilson, Supervisor, Town of
Keene B
9/24/2019 NCCC Retiree Breakfast Saranac Lake, NY
9/26/2019 Middle States Self-Study Visit with Dr. Bob Bonfiglio Saranac Lake, NY
10/02/2019 Sylvie Nelson, Executive Director, North Country Saranac Lake, NY
Workforce Development Board
10/03/2019 SUNY Prison Education Working Group Phone Saranac Lake, NY
| Conference -
10/8/2019 Richard Merchant, President, and Paul Dingman, Saranac Lake, NY
Chair, New York State Association for Rural Health
10/9/2019 Charlie Harrington, Crown Point Town Supervisor | Crown Point, NY
10/9/2019 Joe Giordano, Ticonderoga Town Supervisor Ticonderoga, NY
10/11/2019 Regional K-12 and BOCES Superintendents Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
10/11/2019 Nursing Advisory Board Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
10/17/2019 Kim Bouchard, Artistic Director, Pendragon Theatre Saranac Lake, NY
| and SUNY Potsdam Professor Emeritus




10/17/2019 | Ti Area Chamber of Commerce Event | Ticonderoga, NY
10/18/2019 | Rad Tech Advisory Board Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
10/22-23/2019 | SUNY President’s Fall Meeting Albany, NY
| 10/23/2019 North Country Regional Forum on Learning for Work | Lowville, NY
proposed legislation - -
| 10/24/2019 Malone Chamber of Commerce Event | Malone, NY i

* A thank you to Diana Fortune, Chris Knight, Selina LeMay-Klippel, Matt Courtright, Mary Scarf,
and countless others who helped make these wonderful events celebrating the College and our place
in the North Country.

Administrative Updates
No update to report.

Board Compeosition
We are still waiting to hear back from Franklin County regarding on whether they have any
record of the agreement between the counties on how the “rotation” appointee (it changes

hands between the counties every seven years?) is selected.

Earlier this month, I reached out to Joe Giordano, the Ticonderoga Town Supervisor
regarding his notifying the Essex County Board of Supervisors Chair, Shaun Gillaland, of his
desire to move Donna Wadsworth’s name forward to fill out Anne McDonald’s seat effective
January 1, 2020. As we learned from Jim Brooks, the College’s attorney, with the exception
of the student appointee, board members’ terms run from July 1t through June 30 and are
for seven (7) year terms, unless the member is filling a vacant seat and then they hold the
seat until the term has ended. In the event that a vacancy is not filled immediately, the
trustee will serve in their trustee capacity with full trustee power until the replacement is
selected and sworn in. If Donna Wadsworth is appointed in January 2020, her term will run
until June 30, 2026.

Regarding the student trustee, a student has been elected and we are awaiting her decision
on whether to accept the position or not. Hopefully, we will have a decision by the time of
our October 25, 2019 meeting.

Strategic Plan

The Opening Day Strategic Planning items have been being refined by President’s Council
and Long Range and Strategic Planning Committee. As the Board will recall, we are looking
for a few action items that were priorities for the College, understood and supported by the
College community and could be collectively moved towards this year. As we are in the
middle of that process, I will share those updates with you at the October 25, 2019.

Mission. Vision, and Values

At our last meeting, the Board raised some good questions about the wording of the mission
and the restructuring of the values statements to be more outward-facing for prospective
students and families. That input was helpful and we drafted some changes based on that
input. Those changes were reviewed by and expanded on by President’s Council. We have
moved those out to the College Senate, CSEA and NCCCAP requesting their input and, we

hope, support.

Middle States/SUNY/NYSED

Self-Study

The self-study process is fully underway, with our Steering Committee and Working Groups
nearly full populated. There are formal opportunities (i.e. a membership slot on the Steering
Committee and slots on Working Groups) as well as informal opportunities (i.e. open forums



later in the process) for the Board to participate. We would welcome a Trustee to serve in
any of those capacities.

Attached is the most current draft of the Self-Study Design. This was developed by the
College (most notably Sarah Maroun) and will serve as the guide to the College for how’s and
what’s of conducting our self-study. As Sarah Maroun noted in her report, our meeting with
Dr. Robert Bonfiglio led to some changes, particularly to what we had defined as
institutional priorities. The revised ones are:
e Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in education and guides
the College’s daily operations and strategic planning
¢ Expanding community engagement through partnerships and enhancing community
integration
» Improving financial sustainability through increasing enrollment and retention

SUNY
No updates to report.

% Enrollment:
Kyle and his team have been quite active working to continue efforts in 19-20 recruitment
while simultaneously working on bringing in the Fall 2020 class. There continues to be an
emphasis on outreach to and recruitment of non-traditional students as well as veterans
alongside our traditional recruitment efforts.

One of the key steps Kyle has taken is to meet with folks within and without the College
community to get a sense of what is working well and where do we have room for
improvement. He has also been meeting weekly with an Enrollment Task-Force with
representation across the campus to help make the best decisions regarding how to
strengthen and improve our enrollment, both on the recruitment and retention sides. Two
areas where improvements are possible include making processes more streamlined and
helpful for students (customer-service) and updating our marketing plan.

* 19-20 College Budget:
With Board support, we reached out to CSEA and NCCCAP to explore the possibilities of
offering a $25,000 retirement incentive to faculty/staff with 25 or more years of service
effective at the end of this semester. There are some nine folks eligible who have until
November 15%, 2019 to let us know if they are interested.

Bob and his team have continue to look at ways to chip away at the projected budget deficit
as he will report.

* Campus Safety:

Over the Summer 19 semester, we convened a group of department stakeholders to review
the recommendations of the Campus Safety Committee and have committed to and begun to
address as many of them as possible. Those include placing phones in each classroom,
updating our First Aid kits and co-locating them near our AEDs, installing lock-devices on
classroom doors, among others. These updates are continuing to roll-out across the three
campuses.

*  Staff Appointments:
e NA

Ilook forward to seeing you at our meeting.



Respectfully yours,
\) R k/ﬂ&j}r -
Joe Keegan

President
North Country Community College



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA

North Country Community College
President’s Report to the Board of Trustees
November 20, 2019

Greetings to you all. It seems as though the semester had only just begun, but...in fact, there are
only three weeks remaining. As you will see from our various reports, the faculty and staff have
been hard at work. They are an incredible group of professionals and we are fortunate to have
them part of the North Country CC family. Before we break for Thanksgiving, please find my
report here. I wish you and yours a very Happy Thanksgiving!

* Campus and External Relations

Here are some highlights of events, contacts and interactions that I have been able to
participate in over the last month or so.

Date With Location
10/17/2019 Ti Area Chamber of Commerce Event Ticonderoga, NY
10/18/2019 Rad Tech Advisory Board Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
10/22-23/2019 | SUNY President’s Fall Meeting Albany, NY
10/23/2019 North Country Regional Forum on Learning for Work | Lowville, NY

proposed legislation
10/24/2019 Malone Chamber of Commerce Event Malone, NY
10/30/2019 NCCC Retiree Breakfast Saranac Lake, NY
10/30/2019 Meeting with Kathy Hughes, NAHEC Saranac Lake, NY
11/4-5/2019 New Presidents Orientation — SUNY Albany, NY
11/6/2019 Regional Rural Issues Forum — CV-TEC Plattsburgh, NY
11/8/2019 Business Programs Advisory Board Saranac Lake, NY
11/8/2019 College Senate Meeting Saranac Lake, NY
11/14/2019 Veterans Panel — NCCC Malone, NY
11/15/2019 Hosted SUNY Trustee Eunice Lewin Saranac Lake, NY
11/19/2019 Saranac Lake HS — National Honor Society Address Saranac Lake, NY
11/21/2019 Adirondack Health's Ambulatory Surgery Unit - Saranac Lake, NY

Grand Opening

* A thank you to Diana Fortune, Chris Knight, Selina LeMay-Klippel, Matt Courtright, Mary Scarf,
and countless others who helped make these wonderful events celebrating the College and our place
in the North Country.

Administrative Updates
Stacie Hurwitch pulled together an updated organizational chart for the entire College. A

link was shared with President’s Council for review. Once finalized, we will share it with the
entire campus community.

Board Composition
We are welcoming our new trustee, Vondell “Von” Livingston, who was elected by the NCCC
student body this semester to serve in that capacity.




There are three additional items related to the board that we are waiting on:

Anne McDonald’s replacement (I have reached out to Shaun Gillilland, the Chairman
of the Essex County Board of Supervisors regarding Donna Wadsworth’s candidacy
and hope to have information for you at the meeting).

Pete Suttmeier’s seat: Steve Reed was invited to meet with Franklin County to
discuss their willingness to support a new term for Pete, whose appointment is the
“rotational” one. Pete filled Tom Michael’s seat in 2017 until the end of the term in
2019. Tom had been on the BOT for the better part of two seven-year terms and the
appointment was slated to revert to Essex County, where Pete hales from.

Governor’s Appointments: there is one vacancy and one expired appointment (Mary
Irene Lee) and a 3 appointment (Tim Burpoe’s) which expires in June 2020. I have
asked for help from SUNY’s counsel and will share what I learn at the Board meeting.

* Strategic Plan
The Opening Day Strategic Planning items were refined by President’s Council and Long

Range and Strategic Planning Committee and shared with the Senate for their November 8t,
2019 meeting. PC recommended nine items for consideration, two (2) which were already in
motion, four (4) to consider addressing this year, and, three (3) to defer. The Senate
requested some further details on each, which were shared last week. A summary is attached
for you here. We will be asking the Senate provide us with input on and/or endorse those
recommended for action at their December 2019 meeting.

% Mission, Vision, and Values

At the September 2019 Board of Trustees’ meeting, the Board raised some good questions
about the wording of the mission and encouraged us to consider restructuring the values
statements to be more outward-facing for prospective students and families. That input was
helpful and we drafted some changes based on that input. Those changes were reviewed by
and expanded on by President’s Council and have included those for you here. These have
been shared with the campus community and we will be holding an open forum on them by
semester’s end. We are sensitive that this is a busy time and these changes will impact us all,
so a more deliberate process is in everyone’s interest. I would expect that we will have these
back before the Board at your January 2020 meeting.

* Middle States/SUNY/NYSED
Self-Study

Our Self-Study was formally launched with the development of the Steering Committee in
mid-September and the subsequent populating of our working groups. On Friday, October
25t 2019 we were informed by our Middle States liaison, Dr. Robert Bonfiglio, that our Self-
Study Design was accepted. Thus we are formally and fully underway with our self-study! Dr.
Bonfiglio noted “T commend the Steering Committee for their framing of the responsibilities
of each working group, and for its comprehensive Communication Plan. The commitment
of North Country Community College to a successful self-study process is evident in its
efforts thus far, and I am accepting the self-study design.”

Included in our self-study are our institutional priorities which will help inform our work as
well. They are:

Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in education and guides
the College’s daily operations and strategic planning

Expanding community engagement through partnerships and enhancing community
integration

Improving financial sustainability through increasing enrollment and retention

2



SUNY

On November 15%, 2019, SUNY Trustee Eunice Lewin visited us at our Saranac Lake
campus. Trustee Lewin, who is in addition to her role as trustee, serves on the Trustees
Community Colleges Committee. This was her 64t SUNY campus that she has visited as a
Trustee. She spent her time visiting with students, faculty and staff while here. After her
visit she shared that the students she met with told her that they were here because of who
we are...a community that is kind and caring. She went on to say “It was absolutely my
honor to visit your campus today. From the moment I entered and was greeted by your
staff I knew it is a special place.”

Enrollment:

Kyle and his team have been quite active working to continue efforts in 19-20 recruitment
while simultaneously working on bringing in the Fall 2020 class. There continues to be an
emphasis on outreach to and recruitment of non-traditional students as well as veterans
alongside our traditional recruitment efforts. In addition, the faculty and staff have been
working hard on helping continuing students register for Spring 2020. Thus far, we are
seeing positive results as we have 40 more students registered at this time when compared
to last year (2019 = 548; 2018 = 508).

Kyle will be speaking to some of the changes he has been implementing, including leveraging
and augmenting existing funding for marketing and recruitment.

19-20 College Budget:

With Board support, we reached out to CSEA and NCCCAP to explore the possibilities of
offering a $25,000 retirement incentive to faculty/staff with 25 or more years of service
effective at the end of this semester. There are some nine folks eligible but none who opted
for it. In discussion with CSEA and NCCCAP, there was a sense that folks were concerned
about ending mid-year and about costs of insurance once retired. Based on those
discussions, we have outlined a new proposal which we will discuss with the Board later.

Campus Safety:
As a community, we have been addressing several recommendations from the Campus Safety

Committee including infrastructural changes (i.e. phones in classrooms, offices and labs;
safety door-locks in classrooms, security camera updates, AED/First Aid Kit updates and co-
location) as well as planning and procedures. A smaller group of administrative and
departmental staff met on November 7t, 2019 to continue this work, ensuring that all are
familiar with the established campus safety procedures and protocols. That group is
continuing to meet to strengthen our emergency preparedness and response, starting with
improving communications. Many thanks to all who have played a part in this!

Staff Appointments:
We have welcomed our new NCCC Association Executive Director, Shannon Warren, to the

campus community. Shannon, who hold an MBA from the University of Maryland’s
University College, joined us on November 4%, 2019. Prior to arriving here, Shannon served
as the Assistant Director of Residence Life, University of Maryland — Eastern Shore.

Other:
Some other items that we are working on include:
¢ Responding to the Fall 19 Work-life Survey which identified areas in the physical
plant and IT area to improve our faculty and staff’s work-life.



Institutional Goals: as part of our self-study, it became evident that our institutional
goals were difficult to discern, as they had been reframed and restructured over the
last decade. We have proposed a new, streamlined set that align with our mission,
our values and our institutional priorities, and will guide our strategic planning in
the future. At this point, we are looking to create a forum to share the draft with and
receive input from the campus community.

Policy development: we are working on creation/updating policies ranging from
campus access to the use of video cameras as part of campus safety. As these are
fleshed out further, we expect that they will work their way to the Board for
consideration.

SL Master Plan: Now that the legislators’ and supervisors’ races are nearly complete,
I'd like to work with the Board on the next steps for moving the SL Master Plan
proposal forward.

Ilook forward to seeing you at our meeting.

Respectfully yours,

Joe Keegan

President

North Country Community College



6

"SEare IS0 pue 9SaIR Ul UOLsod 19)39( 18 am 0s Jerp ssaappe 0} sasodoxd
SIY [, "SPa9al INO UM PaYIIBWSIU 916 SINI[IGR INO pue SS[pus ST 1SI|
9y} ‘uona[durod swWn 1S1Y 03 UOLIUAAI JeaL 1511 ‘Pa[joTud syuapn)s o) uerd

SOLIAUI Y]
juepiodulr }SOW UFRJUIEWI PUR 3)INO0SAX

Sunoyrew ‘urodar jueis 0} uonjesrdde juers ‘maraal ureiSoid 01 JUSWISSISSE ‘@1eand ‘sjeard :spIeoqysep/soLnow 2
uonajdwo) ure1301d 191S9WAS-91]1-JO-PUS WOIL] "SSOUIATIIAYD [RUONNITSUI SSISSE pue [oxeasay [euonmnsuy
‘UONUDIY JUAUNTLIDY I9AT[ap “‘ueld 0} elep reuonmnsur uodn sarfal JuounIedap L1949 AeNiIIA
"9UO [BIOURUT] € UBY}
aanadsiad suoniepaa o1 qnd € Wolj oN[eA IOW dARY AW PUB PIIINOSAL J0U uonninsur 9y} Woddns
ApuoLmd s1 31 Jey S1 auafreyd 9y, *s1500 Surerado 19spo doy 0] aNUSAAI pue asreIpuny d{a( 0] UONRITUNUITOD
JO 92IN0S JeUOnIpPpe Ue aq P[NoMm SIYl 18yl SI eopI o} ‘ure8y "uonninsul syl pue yiomiau ruwrnfe dofaasg 9
uons[dwo) Sunuaoddns pue spuny Sursrer ur 3sisse 031 AJ[nJ 210w [uwnge 1o SurseSus
‘uonualey ‘UAUIIMINOY j0U Aq N0 SUISSTUI I8 IM Je[} STedk J0J 9SUSS }9] © Udaq Sey Iy,
"JIPYAp 193pnq INo Jonpai 0} fenuazod a1 sey 198pnq sunerado Ay Ty T —
9pISINO [[eJ 12y} SINqLUSIP 01 aSs[j0D) 9} 10) a[qe[reae sxejjop drysIe[oyas jo oseatour :sdiysIR[OYPS pue vonepunog | S
uonaduro) junoure 91} Suisearou] 193pnq Sunerado aY JO INO SSUW0D YOIYM A[fenuue 5T ’
‘uonualey “ueun Iy 000°‘00€$ awos Jo auny 9y} 0} sjuapnys sdiysre[oyss a3s[[o) a1 ‘AQuaLmy
“Jer} [001a1 01 sasodoad aArienIUL STY T, ‘Juapns 3urooy
aAnpadsord/yuapnis sy} Uey]) 10w UONNINSUI 9} SAISS 0} pausIsap ussq -1 90TAIAS JOWIOISID PISTIOOJ-JT w.w ms
aAey suonerado Ino ‘sased awos uj ‘suonesado ads[jo) aaoxduir 01 saueyd : ] €
p IpPIM-UONMINSU] :901AIOG JOUIOISTL)
uonesduio) Sunjew pue d1iqnd o1y pue sai[rurej ‘syuapms aanoadsoid sAles Loy
‘UONIUDIOY “JUIUNININDY A[aAnoayga moy ur sassadold pue saonoeld yuaimo Suissasse pue Surururexy
SWId]] UOTPY PIpUunuodsy Od
"JeoA JTwepede 0S-6T 97 10J S81BII1IaD J0 surerdord
HILD MU 2-T SUIAJUSPI Ul SHI0HS INo pes| 01 Juswdo[pas( Ie[noLLm) SuIeI8014 STWSPEIY MON | Z
pue weisold uonednpy [edUYIs], pue I931e) JO I0)BUIPIO0)) Y} PIoINosal i
Jus NIy seq agaq[o) 91 ‘sjusunIedap [enpIAIpUl Woj SUTUIod S)I0L 0} UonIppe uf
"TRUIWdS $S3IINS 983[[0)) 00 JSD PSYIpOW pue psjepdn suipnoul Aunoasut
§90IN0S31 MU Jo uonero[dxe pue ystuig 01 WIS Fuons ‘JINV ‘sisierads I91[9Ys pue pooj/ormspede Surpnour
uonualal ‘ysiduy rejuswdopasp ‘Aemjueng) se yons sLIOYS SUNSIXA JO 150Y $90IN0Sa1/s9d1A10s punoredeim | 1
B apnjoul 9sayy, ‘sentuniioddo uonejduros pue uonualal sroxdurr o se os urergoid ‘UonUSAIOIUL A[T€3 pIouB{UD
uopaidwoy pue uonualey | sjuapmis paredaidiapun sisse 03 spioddns pue seoinosal puny pue do[aas(g :syuepnys paredaadiopun Sunioddng
ssaxSoxg uy
uona[duIo)
‘UonULIvY YUAUNINIOIY uondrwsaq uonOy ddajens #

suondLsa(q uonOy 218aens 030s-6103 — £# I[qe],




ot

uoneduo)
‘uonusley “NUIUINNINGY

‘ansand 0} Sn J0J 9[qISes] 9 st ssrjunlIoddo

[ons (Moy 10) JS(IayMm U0 SUOTIRPUIUITIOIDT JUWIOS SYeW P[NOD Jey] 3010]
-¥[S®e) B WLIOJ P[NOD 9M ‘pPajsalojul sem Ajrunuurod sndured o Ji ‘uredy “1esk
ST} 0] 1 UO 19]ap 01 Pa1do am ‘snyT, *91n99xa 01 Surdusyreyo siouwr yonw
mq purgeq 198 031 ASea SeM Jey] BSpI SUO Sem SIY] ‘SYIe JJels pue Sjuapnis
INno 10j a1ed-Aep Lrenb Jo 1500 Y31y oY) JO UISIUOD I} SIeYS [[e oM I[IYM

sjuapnys 10§ suondo axed-ALep Ajrenb
-ySiy ‘syqepaoype 10 senruniroddo
Teqruurs 1o sndures uo 191ua0

axeo-Aep Sunerado axopdxa :axed-pyd

uonejduro)
QUaUININSY ‘UONUY

¢OI YOO 31U ST} JBYM U0

SBapI JIOYLINJ (RIM UoHenSIuIwpe Y] Sp1aoid pue 1es4 STy IOYLINJ eopi oY}
axo[dxs 0} o[qe aq I daTUIWIO)) SJI'T Juspmg pue sndure)) a sdeytag
“1ea£ s1y3 sdais oymads ue[d p[nood am 1]9J oM Je(} SAem Ul Jno paysafj Jou
sem )1 Q1891e1)s A[SUTIeas o[IYM ‘uona[durod pue JUSUNININAI (M ISISSE
0} [enuajod 9y} sey SUOIUUOD JJels pue Anoey FurusyiSusns jey) pensre
3q pP[no9 31 Y2no1 ‘uonualal uo pasnooj Asowr pawaas resodoad siyy,

UonoBIAUL
JO SULIO] I3YR0 ‘SqN]O :SJUSPIIS [PIM
SUOI}09UU0) JJe)s pue A)[noe) usyi3usils

uons[duwo]) ‘JUauINISY

“UONePUSWIUIONDI 1] I9JOp 0] 9SUAS SoYBW )1 ‘paJomsue

9q ued 9sa1 [Qu) *(WAS J0] SPUBWSP JUSLMD 0} INP sioopui 3913oeld 10]
sinoy paju| ‘proy urde[d ren3urs {SWO0I 19400] JUIOYINSUL “3'3) SanI[IIe]
Surisxa Ino uo suonelr] 3urpnout ‘os SuIop Ul SAZUS[[EYD SWIOS o

I3, "JUSWIIINIODI SUISEIIOUL JO SURIUIL B SB 9SS0IJR[ S, UsWI pue Jjos ‘Aaxypoy
qnpo se yons sureioid onsyyie Surppe 210[dxs M JRI[} PIPUSWIUIOIII SeM 1]

sure1301d oNS[YIV MAN

J9J3(J 0} PAPUAWU0INY Dd




2OUDLIDNOL) PAIDYS o

abupy) 03 ssauuadp e

fipyonprazpur puo fins.saxq e
fioua.updsup.g

20UDILIN0Y) PAIDYS o
abupy) 03 ssauuadQ)
finyonpiapur pup ARsteayq e

pup finubajut ‘AnpgpIunoddy e fiouaupndsupyf,
ssaupury pup uoisspdiuo) pup fAinubajur ‘fingpjunodny «
fipsouny fipsoLmny

1PNI03]197UT pUD L06TY QNUBPDIY
01 [[e4 pasodoag

[PN393]ja3u] puD 061 NUWIBPDIY »

‘suonpL1dsp pup spunoubyonq asuamp ‘suoup.ndsp pup spuno.byonq astaap
ynm sppnpraipul fo JusWadYOD ynm sppnprupul Jo Juauaaa1yon
jpuos.ad pup dnuapDID Y] aniny jpuos.ad pup suapoID 3Y;]
0] SSaUPULY PUD UOISSDAWOD fO SINDA  UNIINU JDY] SIOULIIS PUD UOLONLISUY
JDUOINIYISUL N0 PUD SYODPUOLIPY, 0] PaJUIUIOD 2D 34 “ApTuniuiuo
ay3 fo uawiuo.naus anhun ayj puD SJUAPNIS UNO LOf SS3IINS
U0 ppIng 1Y) $301LAS PUD UORINLLSUY puD yamoJb ‘fipungioddo apraoad
0} PaIIUILIOD 24D 3] “Ainunuauod pun| ‘uoyponpa Jaybuy ul 4appa] D ‘9630
Sjuapnis Uno Jof ss300ns pup ‘ymouh  Apumunio) ALuno) YLoN ‘uoibay
‘finungioddo apoad im OOON|  JovpuoIpy 3yl Jo 1403y ay3 uyn

| 61 [ posodoag
*SSa00NS JUSPNIS PUD
finunyeoddo ‘fipnpqop.aoffp ‘ssadop fo

‘bunuina) buojafi]  -6uruupa) Huojafi) pup Juswdoanap
Jof sarpuniuoddo pup “aa.40f4.L0m
p21ys o “Aaudzino pajponpa

upn Suypand fiq SAPUNUWOD LNO JO
[ssaoons ay) o7 fipuporfiubis sanqriuo:
abajop ay [ ss200nS 122D

pup Jafsun.y Lof sjuapnis aupds.ad
1oy swpuboud dsnuapoop fingonk PUD 29U3]]29X3 SNUIPDOD
ybry 03 ssavop uado sapraoad DOON] fo uouppunof buo.ys b uodn Huippng

61 ‘L AON pasodoag 61 ‘01 100 pasodoag

saway] ay} fiq papinb st uossnu Jngy

aa.0fy.10m uo pasnoof sup.bo.id

SD JJam SD “S.122.1DD PUD JLafSup.Lj

£0f spuapnys Burindaud swpuaboad
onuapvop ssaffo abajpjop fipunuwwuoy
Agunop yroN ‘spasu jpuoiba.g

pup finumuiuod o3 ssausaisuodsa.g

finsonm) ppmoajjaguy

fiouaundsupdf,

abupyy o1 ssauuadQ

fin.bajuy puv finpqounoooy

fiponpragpuy

pup fipsaaayq Jo uoyn.iqa)a)

2OUDILIZNOY) PAIDYS

UOYDIUNWIULOD

fijouayy pup uado ‘152U0E

61 Huridg pasodoag

*SUOID.NAST

pup spuno.byonq as.amp

ym sponpiapi o Juswananon

jpuos.ad pup oanuapDID

Y] 2UNNU IDY] SINNIBS PUD

UOIION.LISUT 0] PAINUIOD 34D IM

‘ARUNWU0d pup SJUSPNIS INO JL0f

$s300nSs pup yymoub ‘finunyroddo

apoud jum ‘uoyponpa

+2yby w1 1apva] v ‘abajjo)

finununuoy Aquno) YoN ‘uoibau

AoDpUOLPY 2y1 JO LIDY 3Y3 UM
61 Suradg pasodogg

*Spaau Juawdo}aaap d1ULOU0ID pUD
ssauisng ‘inununuoo ‘qonprapul
JY1oads an.as 0] paz1uL03snd
supab04d 432409 pUD J2fSUDJ]
L[]0 ap “2040fy10m PaJNYs pup
fi.uazano pajponpa up burwdaad
fiq samunwio uno fo juswdojaaap
ay3 o1 fippupofiubis saInqLIU0d
pup uoyponpa flinpuooasisod
fizponb yb1y 03 ss200D uado sa.nsua
abajjop finununuo) A.guno) yLoN
61 Suradg pasodoag

VOOUIANODIL | INOTVIN | 3NV IVNVHYS

ApsoLm) [onidafpayur

fiouaundsup.],

abupy)) 03 ssauuadQ

finuibagur puv finpgojunodoy

faypnprapury

pup fAipsdaayq £of 1adsa. [prny

20UDWIIN0L) PALDYS o

UOYDNUNWIUIOD

fijaunyz pup uado “1SaUCE]

JUDLIN)

‘finununuod

pUup SJUapn}s Uno .i0f $sadons pup

yuno.b ‘finunyioddo saounyus 1oy}

uonponpa finypnb p apraoud pm agm

‘uoyvONpa 3Yybry ul I3pPa) D 3q M

abajjop finununuo) AQuno) YLOoN
JUR.LIND

‘Yamoub puos.ad pup Jpuolponpa

L12y7 w1 sponpraaput o buneoddns

pup Burbus)oyo ‘) yaas oym p Lof

aouaniadxa Buippng Ainununuod pup

buruanay jpuondaoxs up sapinoad

abapop finununuo) Aguno) YroN
1uLIN))

AUDA M3

N 40 ALISYIAINA LVLS 3HL

d93TT00 ALINOWIWOO
ANLNNOD H.LYON

JN

soneA

UWOISIA

UOISSTIN




NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA

North Country Community College
President’s Council
Mission and Vision Statements Update
October 10, 2019

Background

In December 2018, as the College began to prepare for our upcoming self-study, we saw
an opportunity to review our mission, vision and values, which were last updated in
2011, and ensure that they reflected our understanding of who we are and what we hope
to accomplish as an institution. The Self-Study process directed our attention to the fact
that the new self-study approach and the Standards for Accreditation and
Requirements for Affiliation which it is founded upon, ask institutions to reflect on and
assess how well their actions align with their mission.

Spring 19 Review

To that end, we decided that we would seize the opportunity to reconsider them all
which led to a series of engagements with the College community throughout the Spring
19 semester. We sought to be as inclusive in the process as possible, bringing as many
constituent groups to the table as possible. The process included engaging the College
community through multiple means, including hosting two campus-wide open forums,
establishing an agenda item for discussion and review at a President’s Council meeting,
a formal review from our College Senate as well as a formal review by our faculty and
professional staff union (NCCCAP). The latter two groups approved those changes in
May 2019.

Fall 19 Board of Trustees Review
At their September 27th, 2019 meeting, the Board of Trustees was asked to review the
proposal and, if in agreement, approve them. After their review, the Board expressed
their support of the process and the updated mission and vision, but recommended we
reconsider the ordering and some wording of the values section. Specifically, they
observed that the values seemed more inward-focused, communicating to the College
community what we valued, rather than to prospective students and their families. For
example, the first two values we list are:

e Honest, open and timely communication

e Shared Governance

While meaningful for us, the Board wondered whether or not shared governance was
understood by a student or their family, let alone whether it would make help them
decide whether the College was a good fit. They also noted that there was an absence of
academic/intellectual rigor expressed in our values, which seemed inconsistent, given
our mission as an institution of higher education. The Board also cautioned us from too
tightly defining our mission and noted that the newly proposed mission seems to
communicate that we are more workforce-focused than education-focused.



Next Steps

Below, you will find a reframing of our mission statement along with some restructuring
of our values with an eye towards communicating those to both and external and
internal audience. We noted we would bring these back to the College community for
review and discussion and look to have these before the Board at their October 25th,
2019 meeting. At this point, we will start the discussion with President’s Council, hold a
College-wide open forum, move onto the College Senate and to NCCCAP, following the
path taken during the Spring 19 semester.



OUDULIN0L) PaIDYS o
abuoy) o1 ssauuadQ)
fionpiagpuy pup fiygsseoyd «
fiouaupdsun.g,
pup finubaur ‘ANpQoIUNOIIY
finsoniny)
NGEREEE pup .EQM SE%S«« .

asLap ypm spnprapul o Juauna1yon)
[puos.ad pup UIPDID Y] dUNLINU

IDY] S391I3S PUD UONOTLIISUL O] PAJIILUULON
auD apf Anpununuod pup spuapnys

N0 J£0f ssadons pup yamoub ‘finunyioddo
apuao.d [um ‘uoyvonpa 4aybry ul LIpDIY

D ‘abajjo) fiprunwwo) Aquno) YIoN]

"suoD.ndsD pup spuno.Lb u\ouq i

‘uoba.L yovpuoupy mﬁ 40 1103y ayz uiynm

*$S30INS JUSPNIS pub
‘Ainpqopuofb ‘$s3000 fo sawiayy oy

fiq papinb s1 uoisstut ung) ‘Buruavay Huopafi
pun yuawdojpaap a040f0m uo pasnao)
swun.Lbo.d SO J]om SD ‘492400 PUD L2fSUD.L]
J£of spuapmys burinda.ad swoubosd d1uapoor
suaffo aBiapo) finunuiwo) fgguno,

YUON “spoau ppuciba.t pub Apumuiuo

03 ssauamIsuOdsa. pup 30Ud189Xa SNUSPDID

k,c :aﬁuﬁ::e& u:o.am D :c&: mEES :

finsown) jpnyoajaaur

fiouaundsup.i] «

abupy)) 03 ssauuad)

finubajuy puv AngoIUN0IIY
fiponprapuy

pup fipstaai( fo uonD.LGa3) -

20UDUIIA0L) PAIDYS o
UOLDOIUNUIULIOD

EwE: w:u :m&o Nwm:om .

as.aa1p ynm sppnprapul fo Juswanayon
[puos.ad pup MWIPDID 3Y] dNINU IDY]
$20113S PUD UOLOTLIISUL 0] PAIULLULOD
auD aA) “AApunuiwod pup SJUIPN]S UNo L0f
$sa20ns puv yymoub ‘finunyioddo apraosd
[im ‘uouvonpa uaybry ur 4apoa) v 2HaJ]0)
finunuuo) Aguno) YruoN ‘uoibad
YIDPUOLIPY Y] JO 1.103Y 3y3 UYL
61 Sundg pasodoag
o ‘spaau juawidojaaap
210022 pup ssaulsnq ‘Apunuuod
‘monprarput dfivads aauas 01 pazZIuLoISNd
swin.boud 12240 pup J3fSup.L]
42fJ0 ap -do40f10m paqvls pup Aduaziod
paonpa up bulndaud fq sapunuwiuod
no fo yuawdojaaap ayy 03 Aipquporfiubis
$9INQLLU0D pup uoyLINP? fiuppuodasisod
fimgonb ybry o3 ssa00p uado sa.nsua
mmwzoo EE:EEQU m.:::oo Y1ON

"suonD.adsp pup SpUnoLbYonq

pup finsaanyq Lof oadsad jpnngy e

20UDULIN0L) PILDYS o
UOYDIUNUUL0D

fijauin) pup uado 1SaUCH

Apisonny (onjoagaus e
Aouaundsupd] e
abuny) 01 ssauuadQ) e

finbauy pup ANNIGDIUNOIIY e

ALY

‘APUNWULO PUD SJUBPNIS N0 J0f $S200NS
pup yymoub ‘Anuniioddo saouvyua

10y} uoyoonpa fiyonb p apraoad

Im apq “uoyvonpa L2y by ul L2pDI] D 3q
jm abapo) finunwiwo) Anuno) Y1ioN

"Yyunoub ppuos.aad
pup [puoyLONPa L19Yy] Ul S|PNPLAPUL )]D
bun.oddns pup burbuagoyo N )yja9s oym
11D 40f 2ouatiadxa Buippng Anunwiwiod
pup bunupa] ppuorydadxa up sapraodd

_abaj10D E:SEEOD Agunoy YHON

fipponpraipuy

saneA

UOTSTA

UOISSTIA

[esoc o.-m 61 [Ted




NORTH COUNTRY
‘ COMMUNITY COLLEGE

THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

North Country Community College
MSCHE Self-Study Design

Submitted to

Middle States Commission on Higher Education

from

NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Saranac Lake, NY 12983

Joseph Keegan, College President

October 14, 2019



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

' THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK
TABLE OF CONTENTS

L. Institutional Overview ............ciiiiiiiiinninniniiiici e, 1
Il. Institutional Priorities...........cccccviiiniiiiiiiiiiiiniiniiiiiccccccceee, 5
ll. Intended Outcomes of the Self-Study ......cccuureerierrrininciinnnnnnnne. 5
IV. Self-Study Approdch ...........oiriiiiiirrriicciiiireccccnrreereeeeeeeerenananae 5
V. Organizational Structure of Steering Committee and Working

GIOUPS .etiieieiieieerieeiieeiieeieecseeeneeceseessessssessssssssssssnsssasssssnennnsnnnnnnns 6
VI. Guidelines for Reporting.........eeeeieeeiiecienciiiiiiiiiinnenneerreresceenns 15
VIl. Organization of the Final Self-Study Report.............cceeeuneeeeeees 18
VIIl. Verification of Compliance Strategy......ccceviveiiiciciinininnnnnnnnn. 18
IX. Self-Study Timetable .........civvriirriiiciiiiiiiicciinnnnrecenieeeneenen, 19
X.  Communicalion Plan.......ccccccevivimmiminienencnncecne 20
XI. Evaluation Team Profile .........ccccveiiiiiiiiiiiiininniiiiicniniciiineenn 21
Xll. Evidence INVeNntory......... . iicriinreremneieisnniienmensssssssssesenmnnnnnnns 21
Appendices:

Appendix 1: Reporting Grid...........cciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinniien, 22



NORTH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

: THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF REW YORK

Self-Study Design Draft
October 10, 2019
Institutional Overview

North Country Community College (NCCC) is beginning its 5274 year as the only public
institution of higher education in New York State's Adirondack Park. One of thirty
community colleges within the SUNY System, North Couniry is sponsored by Essex and
Franklin counties, which cover a 3,500 square-mile area with 90,000 residents between
both counties. The College’s enrollment stems mostly from residents within these
counties; however, students from outside of Essex and Franklin Counties also find North
Country an attractive place to learn and study.

The College's main campus is located in Saranac Lake, NY, a community shared by Essex
and Franklin counties, with branch campuses in Malone (northern Franklin County) and
Ticonderoga (southern Essex County). In 2017, the College added an additional four
branch campuses as part of the Second Chance Pell experiment, three within the New
York State Department of Corrections and Community Supervision (DOCCS) system
(Adirondack Correctional in Ray Brook, NY, Bare Hill Correctional in Malone, NY and
Franklin Correctional in Malone, NY}, and one at the Federal Correctional Institute in Ray
Brook, NY. Courses are aiso offered at twenty-seven area high schools (additional
locations) as part of College Bridge, NCCC's dual-enrollment program. The College
recently added an additional location to our offerings on Akwesasne, the St. Regis
Mohawk Territory in northern Franklin County.

The College offers twenty associates degrees and five certificate programs, designed to
prepare students for transfer and/or the workforce. In recent years, we have responded
to student interest in online programs, adding three online programs to our offerings.

Programs cluster in a number of categories including aillied health, business,
environmental (including wilderness recreation), fine arts {(including computer graphics),
human services (including criminal justice) and the liberal arts. A strong applied leaming
focus is infegral to several programs, and in programs designed to prepare students for
the workforce, NCCC works with community and educational partners to continually
collaborate on ways to improve the programs and the college experience to better
prepare students for employment.

The student body at North Country is a tale of three campuses. The Saranac Lake
campus, the only one which has on-campus residence options and inter-collegiate
athletics, tends to have a younger and more diverse student body. It also boasts the
highest number of programs, with our Radiologic Technology. Massage Therapy and
environmental programs only located on the Saranac Lake campus. The Malone and
Ticonderoga campuses have a narrower range of programs for students and fend to
have a more local student body. As noted, the Malone campus is geographically close
to Akwesasne, home to the St. Regis Mohawk Tribe, and thus tends to enjoy the larger
share of native students enrolled on that campus. Students from St. Lawrence County,
and to a lesser extent, Clinton County, ailso find the Malone campus a viable option,
particularly as it applies to NCCC's allied health programs. The Ticonderoga branch



campus, which is quite close to Vermont, sees a number of students from the Green
Mountain State attending NCCC, again particularly for our Practical Nursing and
Associate’s Degree in Nursing programs.

In preparation for NCCC'’s self-study, the College community undertook a review of its
mission, vision, and values during the Spring 2019 semester. These were last updated in
2011. The process for making changes included engaging the College community
through multiple means, including hosting two campus-wide open forums, establishing
an agenda item for discussion and review at a President’s Council meeting, a formal
review from our College Senate as well as a formal review by the faculty and professional
staff union (NCCCAP). The latter two groups approved changes in May 2019. During the
September Board of Trustees meeting, the revisions were reviewed and some suggestions
and questions arose. An updated version of the mission, vision, and values statement
was put forth and will be voted on by the College Senate during the Fall 2019 semester.
A table documenting the prior and pending adopted mission, vision and values is
provided below.

At the start of the 2018-19 academic year, President Dr. Steven Tyrell, announced he was
stepping down on June 15, 2019, after seven years at the College. Over the last year, the
College completed a search for the presidency, resulting in the selection of the Vice
President for Academic Affairs and Accreditation Ligison Officer, Joe Keegan, as the
College's seventh (7) president. Our Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, Ms. Sarah
Maroun, has stepped in as our interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, providing
consistency in leadership in the academic area. NCCC has also recently filled the
position of Vice President for Marketing and Enroliment following the departure of the
former Dean of Admissions in December 2019. Thus, the 2018-19 year proved to be quite
a year of transition at the College, with three of the four senior leadership roles changing
hands.

Looking forward, this is a perfect time for a self-study providing an opportunity to take
stock of what has been working and what needs changing and take those steps to best
position the College to continue to play an essential and vital role in our communities.
Over the last few years, we have made a conscious decision to reinvest fime and energy
to more fully engage our communities fo find befter ways to serve student aspirations
and help meet our area/regional workforce needs. This furn inward, while at the same
time supporting outreach and recruitment outside the area, has been welcomed by
county sponsors and community members, and supported by faculty and staff. Over
time, the College will develop methods to continue to develop and refine the academic
offerings and continuing education possibilities in ways that support the desires and
needs of the local communities and region.

In conjunction with a review of the mission, vision, and values, the College community
also reviewed and voted on institutional priorities that will form the basis for moving
forward in the next decade. The College Senate voted on three main priorities for the
College that include a focus on student success, community engagement, and
institutional improvement. After multiple revisions and input from constituencies including
President’'s Council, the Board of Trustees, the College Senate, and the Self-Study Steering
Committee, the final revised institutional priorities are as follows:

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 2



» Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in education
and guides the College's daily operations and strategic planning

> Expanding community engagement through partnerships and enhancing
community integration

> Improving financial sustainability through increasing enrollment and retention

Within these broader priorities, a few areas we envision exploring in the near future, based
on planning and assessment work over the past few years include: 1) partnering with our
county sponsors and community supporters to bring much needed facilities updates to
our Saranac Lake campus, 2) partnering with area BOCES/higher education partners on
technology related programs/certificates, and 3) finding and implementing strategies
that improve efficiency and increase productivity across a number of administrative and
support platforms (e.g. development of a more robust IR team; co-locating
administrative offices in ways that are easier for students and families to navigate).

The foundation for all of the initiatives and priorities listed above is the College’s mission
that provides a guiding path for future endeavors. While the College is in the process of
refining the language of the mission, the essence has remained, which is providing
access to excellent educational opportunities with a focus on helping students chart their
paths toward career and educational goals. The table on the following page outlines
the latest iteration of the College's mission. A vote on the final wording is scheduled for
the November Senate meeting.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 3



Adusindsubif o

Ajisolnd [pnpoajiaiul «

Ayisound [pngoajoiuf o

abuby> o ssauuado .
AuBauj pup Aiqojunosoy . Asuaipdsupi] Aduaipdsupiy «
52UDUISACS POIDYS . abupby) o} ssauuadQ @bupby) of sssuuadp «
. Aubaul pup AIqounoday « Aubaju) pun Aqpiuno22y « | san|bA
UOHDOIUNWIWOD AjaWi} pub usado ‘JSauoy . dsal [P
AgonpIAIpU| pUD AJISISAIQ JO UOYDIGaIaD . ANDNPIAIPU] PUD AJISISAIQ 4O UOHDIGDIDD) » Apnpiaipu) pup AIsiaAlq 1o} §od i .
: Ausouns _o.: ool . 32UDUIBA0S PBIDYS » 9JUDPUISAOD) .um:o:w .
1061y DILUSPDOY . uoyPIUNWWO AWl pup uado ‘JSSUOH » UOYDIUNWWOD Aj9Wilj pub uado ISOUOH
(6102 1IpJ) pasiroy (51 Bupds) meN loud
‘suolDIIdSD PUD SPUNOIBYODG JSIDAIP
'suoypidsp pub spunoib)oDq aSISAIP YiMm UM SIPNPIAIPUL JO [UBWSABIYID [DUOSIDI "Ajjunwiwios
SIDNPIAIPUL JO JUSWIDASIYSD [DUOsIad PUD JIWIPDID PUD J1WSPOID Y} DINUNU (DY) SOIIAIBS PUD PUD sjuUaPNYS INO JO} SS323NS PUD YiMoIB
Y} DINUNU DY} SIDIAISS PUD UOHINHSU] Of POIWWOD | UOHINYSUL Of PIYWWOD 21D 3] “Auniuwod ‘Ajjunpoddo s2oubyua joyj UOYDINPS Ajipnb | UOISIA
2ID 9M "AJUNWIWIOD PUD SJUSPNYS INO 10§ S$22INS puD sjuapnys 1no 10§ ss32nS PUD YMOIb D apiaold jjim 3M "Uojoonpa 1aybny uj 19pba)
pup ymoub ‘Agunuoddo apiroid [im ‘uoyponpo ‘Apunpioddo apiaoud jim ‘uoloanpa 1aybiy D aq [iim aB3jjoD Aunwwod Auno yHoN
12yBy ut 1sppa) b ‘abajjo) Aunwwod Ajunor) ur Japbaj b *9bajjoD Aunwiwio) Auno) YloN
YUON ‘uoibai Yoppuolpy Syf JO UD3Y Y} UIYIM ‘uolbal X2DpUOIPY By} jo UD3Y Sy} UIYIM
(6102 1104) pasiaay (61 Buuds) man iopd
‘'spaau juawdojarap
"92UDASJRI [pUOSIDd pup Aunuoddo ‘Agijiqopioyp JHUOUO0D3 PUD ssaulsng “AfUnWIIOD
‘sS922D JO saway] ay} Aq papinb si uorssiw ‘IPNPIAIPUL DYI29dSs DAIDS Of PIZILLIOISND *Ymoib jpuosiad pup
inQ *Buiuipba) Guojayy pub JUSWAO[EABD 32I0PIOM swpiboid 193109 puD I19JSUDI} ISH0 DM [puoyPONPa J1AY} Ul SIPNPlAIpU] jib Bujuoddns
U0 pasnd0j swibiboid sp [jam SD ‘SID9ID2 PUD IDJSUDY |  *92I0pj10M PaJs PUD AIUSZHID PIILINPI UD | pub BuiBusybyd ‘jI yO9S OYM [0 Joj I2usUdXD | UOISSIW

oy spuapnys Buppdaid swpiboid 31WBPDID siayo

@#b9jjoD Aunwwo) Ayuno) yuoN ‘spaau [puoibail

puD Aunuwiuo? of ssauaAIsuodsal pup 22UlJ[8IXd
JJwapDID jo uolbpuno} Buolys p uodn Bulpjing

Buupdaid Aq seyjunwiwio 1no Jo JuawdojaAap
ay} o4 Ajpupoiubils seINQUEUOD PUD UOHDINPD
Aippuooasisod Agonb ybiy o sses2p uado
sainsua 9b3ajjoD Agunwwo) Ayuno) YLoN

Buipjing Agunwiwod pup Bujuipa) jpuoydasxa
up sapiaold abajjod Ajlunwiwio) Aunod YLoN

(6102 1Rd) pasiray

(61 Buuds) maN

tolid

MHOA MIN 30 ALISHIAINA 31VLS 3HL

J9dTI00 ALINNWWOD

AULNNOD H.ILIYON




NORTH COUNTRY

COMMUNITY COLLEGE
’ THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

Institutional Priorities: The following institutional priorities developed through a

conversation across the College with multiple constituencies providing input.

1. Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in education and
guides the College’s daily operations and strategic planning

2. Expanding community engagement through partnerships and enhancing
community integration

3. Improving financial sustainability through increasing enroliment and retention

Intended Outcomes of the Self-Study
Throughout the self-study process, the College will achieve the following outcomes:

1. Reaffirmation of Accreditation: The College will establish how it meets the MSCHE
Standards for Accreditation, Requirements of Affiliation, and Verification of
Compliance. This is essential for the sustainability of the institution.

2. Campus Inclusivity: The institution will follow an inclusive process that engages
members across the college community. The structure of the self-study will include
regular reporting intervals regarding findings and progress.

3. Charting a Path Toward Continuous Improvement: Using the MSCHE Standards as a
guide, the College will evaluate all areas related to each standard and focus on
the evaluation of institutional processes across departments to help inform and
improve planning (academic, enrollment, financial, operational, and strategic).

4. Improving Institutional Sustainability and Student Success: Develop sustainable
initiatives related to recruitment, retention, persistence, and completion grounded in
student support and services that specifically support the institution reaching its
established annual enroliment targets and goals.

. Self-Study Approach

Standards-Based Approach v. Priorities-Based Approach

This self-study will use a Standards-Based Approach. The decision to follow the
Standards-Based Approach was informed by two principal inputs: 1) a review of the
two approaches. and, 2} a discussion with our Middle States liaison at the time, Dr.
Christy Faison. While at the MSCHE Self-Study Institute in fall of 2018, we were infroduced
to both approaches and saw the merits of each one. However, given that much of the
energy spent af the College these last few years focused on bringing the institution in
line with respect to Standard VI (formerly Standard 2) and Standard V (formerly
Standard 14} and given the need to continue to demonstrate that efforts are being
sustained, a standards-based approach provides a more beneficial structure. Given the
overlap among some standards, we have combined Standards | and VI, and Standards
Il and VIl to be analyzed by the same working groups.



The standards-based approach provides the opportunity to weave institutional priorities
throughout all of the standards, while assuring that all criteria are addressed in a
comprehensive evaluation. The other advantage to this approach is that it improves
communication across the College community when soliciting information and
feedback during the self-study process. Dividing the study into sections related to each
Standard provides a clear pathway to communicate with all members of the College
community.

V. Organizational Structure of Steering Committee and Working Groups

Steering Committee Mission: To lead the College and campus community through the
self-study process in a manner that creates opportunities for robust engagement,
identifies institutional strengths and challenges, and demonstrates compliance with the
Middle States Commission on Higher Education Standards and Requirements of
Affiliation.

Steering Committee Organization and Structure:

The Steering Committee of North Country Community College's Self-study is composed
of fourteen members including two self-study co-chairs, working group chairs (or
alternates), and representatives from constituency groups across the college
community to ensure that the self-study captures the most complete and accurate
snapshot of the institution and its operations. A listing of the Steering Committee
members and their titles is found below.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 6



[ North Counfry Community College
MSCHE Self-Study Steering Committee

Self-Study Co-Chairs

Sarah Maroun Interim Vice President of Academic Affairs
MSCHE Accreditation Liaison Officer

Erik Harvey Comptroller

Working Group 1

Standard I: Mission and Goals, and,

Standard VI Planning, Resources, and Institutional Improvement
Bob Farmer Vice President for Administration/CFO
Shir Filler Professor — Humanities;

College Senate Chair

Working Group 2

Standard 1I: Ethics and Integrity, and,

Standard VIl Governance, Leadership and Administration

| Stacie Hurwitch Executive Assistant to the President

Selina LeMay-Klippel Coordinator — CTE Program and Curriculum Development
| Ticonderoga Campus Coordinator

Working Group 3
Standard {li: Design & Delivery of the Student Learning Experience ]
Cammy Sheridan Associate Professor/Chair — Social Science
ADA/504 Coordinator
| Lisa Williams Learning Assistance Coordinator — Saranac Lake
| Working Group 4
Standard IV: Support of the Student Experience
Kim Irland Dean of Student Life
| Chief Diversity Officer -
Kate Wells | Learning Assistance Coordinator — Malone Campus
Working Group 5
Standard V: Educational Effectiveness Assessment
Sarah Shoemaker Assistant Professor of Health Sciences ,
To Be Filled -
Working Group 6
Verification of Compliance and Evidence inventory
Shelly St. Louis Registrar ]
Laurie Muncil Administrative Assistant to the Vice President for Academic Affairs

Other Steering Commiltee Members
North Country CC Board of Trustees Member

North Country CC Association of Professionals
North Country CC CSEA Member

Steering Committee Charge:

The Steering Committee will lead the North Country CC self-study in a manner that is
broadly inclusive and supportive of the community's efforts. It will be led by our Inferim
Vice President for Academic Affairs and Accreditation Licison Officer, Sarah Maroun,

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 7



and the College Comptroller, Erik Harvey. Many of the Steering Committee members
have a long working relationship, with several having served on the 2011 MSCHE Self-
study and the 2016 Periodic Review Report. Thus, they are well-versed in the value and
necessity of a collaborative approach in the self-study process.

The sfructure of the Steering Committee is one strategy to encourage and support
efficiency and interaction among working groups. Each Working Group will have one
co-chair on the Steering Committee as a member, while the second co-chair will serve
as an alternate, creating structured opportunities for collective action. The process will
also be an important strategy: Regular and formal reporting by the Working Groups will
track progress and communicate findings to the Steering Committee which will provide
insight into whether the groups are on target and where there may be unnecessary
redundancy in their efforts. Additionally, in the spirit of fransparency, documents related
to the work of both the Working Groups and Steering Committee will be stored and
shared in a space on the learning management system, which is currently Blackboard.

Experience at the College shows that informal sharing of information between working
group members helps spur collaboration in working across common areas of interest
and inguiry and there will be plenty of opportunities for such teamwork in
departmental, faculty, or College-wide (including governance) meetings.

As noted, the Steering Committee will establish a regular timeline of meetings for the
purposes of oversight and receiving updates from the various Working Groups. Those
meetings will have the dual-purpose of identifying where the Working Groups are
experiencing “stuck spots” in their work evaluating and assessing the College’s
compliance with Commission standards, as well as our institutional priorities. The Steering
Committee will facilitate an initial meeting during the launch of the self-study process to
communicate with the broader campus community regarding the following:
e the College's mission and institutional priorities,
¢ the goals/objectives of the self-study,
¢ the MSCHE Standards for Accreditation and Requirements for Affiliation
document,
¢ the evidence inventory,
o otherresources,
o strategies for convening and conducting the work of assessing compliance and
evaluating our institutional priorities, and
e encouraging the community to provide direct feedback to the Steering
Committee on how best to serve the work that the Working Groups are doing.

These will also be revisited regularly throughout the self-study process. The Self-Study
Design will be posted publicly for the College community.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 8



Working Groups:
Information and details on each working group, including their composition, charge,
and responsibilities are found below:
North Country Community College
MSCHE Working Group 1
Standard k Mission and Goals/
Standard VI: Planning, Resources, and Insfifutional Improvement

| Co-Chairs al &
Bob Farmer Vice President for Administration/CFO ]
Shir Filler Professor of Humanities; College Senate Chair
Members
LsaSymonds | Director of Financial Operations
Diana Fortune North Country CC Foundation Director -

| Scott Harwood Assistant Dean — Institutional Research & Support

| Rick Heath Superintendent of Buildings and Grounds N
Shelly St. Louis Registrar
Lee Susice i Professor of Mathematics; NCCCAP President o
Charge

Lead the College’s efforts in examining, documenting and reporting on North Country CC's
complionce with Standards | and VI, including all criteria. Gain insights into strengthening
management and marshalling of resources more effectively that are tied to our mission and allow
for strategic investments and improvements in planning and resource allocation will be part of the
outcomes. This charge includes a review of the planning processes, including recent master plan
updates for the Saranac Lake campus, IT plans, academic plans, enroliment plans and facilities
plans. The group will employ an active, open, and evidence-based process that identifies
institutional strengths, challenges, and opportunities for improvement and innovation in relation to
those standards and any institutional priority under their purview.

Standard I: | Mission and Goalls _
Standard VI. Resources, and Institutional Improvement |
Institutional Priority 1 Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in
education and guides the College’s daily operations and strategic
planning

Institutional Priority 2 Expanding community engogemeht_fhrough porfnérships and enhancing
community integration

Institutional l_’riority 3 Improving financial sustainability Through_increcsi_ng enrollment and
retention

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and helpful in the working group
| carry out its work:

Vice President for Administration/CFQ | Saranac Lake Campus 2019 Facilities Master Plan
| Update - B
Director of Financial Operations College Senate’s Long Range and Strategic
| Planning Committee minutes and actions
Bursar - | Work-Life Survey -
| NCCC Strategic Plan 2017-21 | Diversity Survey

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 9



North Couniry Community College
MSCHE Working Group 2
Standard H: Ethics and Integrity/
Standard VII: Governance, Leadership, and Administration

Co-Chairs
Stacie Hurwitch Executive Assistant to the President

Selina LeMay-Klippel Coordinator — CTE Program and Curriculum_DeveIopmen’r
Ticonderoga Campus Coordinator

Members Ml
Dianna Dudiey Help Desk Technician
CSEA President S -
| Sarah Kilby Director, Second Chance Pell Program
Bruce Rowe Instructor of Humanities
- | Humanities Department Chair
Tara Smith Directfor of Human Resources
Title IX Coordinator ]
Mary Smutz Accounts Payable and Purchasing Agent
TBA Board of Trustees Member |
Charge

Lead the College's efforts in examining, documenting and reporting on North Country CC’'s
compliance with Standards fi and VIi, including all criteria. The group will examine how well
the College “is faithful to its mission, honors its contracts and commifments, adheres to its
policies and represents itself truthfully” in its activities both internally and externally. The

group will also examine how the College is governed and administered, allow for “it fo

redlize its stated mission and goals in a way that effectively benefits the institufion, its

students, and the other constituencies it serves.” The group will employ an active, open, and |
evidence-based process that identifies institutional strengths, challenges, and opportunities
for improvement and innovation in relation to those standards and any institutional priority

| under their purview.

' Standard II: | Ethics and Integrity

| Standard VI: | Governance, Leadership and Administration

Institutional Priority 1 Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in

education and guides the College’s daily operations and strategic
planning

Institutional Priority 3 Improving financial sustainability through increasing enroliment and
refention

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and helpful in the working

 group carry out its work:

Vice President for Administration/CFO | NCCCAP CBA 2019-21 |
Director of Financial Operations CSEA CBA 2019-21 -

Bursar | NCCC Mission, Vision, Values -
Director of Human Resources College Senate By-Laws

Chief Diversity Officer Shared Governance Working Group Doc

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 10



North Couniry Community College
MSCHE Working Group 3
Standard Iil: Design & Delivery of the Sludent Learning Experience

Co-Chairs o
Cammy Sheridan | Associate Professor/Chair — Social Science
__ | ADA/504 Coordinator o
| Lisa Williams | Learning Assistance Coordinator — Saranac Lake
Members
Jimmy Cunningham Associate Professor of Wilderness Recreation Leadership
I Director, Wilderness Recreation Leadership
Tom McGrath Learning Assistance Center —Ticonderoga
Tana Hare Instructor of Nursing - B
Stacey Mascia-Susice | Professor of English - -
| Margaret Campion Adjunct Instructor/Learning Assistance Center Staff
Student representative ]
Charge

Lead the College’s efforts in examining, documenting and reporting on North Country CC's
compliance with Standard llll, including all criteria. The group will examine how well the
College “provides students with learning experiences that are characterized by rigor and
coherence at all program, certificate, and degree levels, regardless of instructional
modality. All learning experiences, regardless of modality, program pace/schedule, level,
and setting are consistent with higher education expectations.” The group will employ an
active, open, and evidence-based process that identifies institutional strengths, challenges,
and opportunities for improvement and innovation in relation to those standards and any
institutional priority under their purview.

Standard lli: Design & Delivery of the Student Learning Experience

Institutional Priority 1 Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in
education and guides the College’s daily operations and strategic
planning

' Institutional Priority 2 Expanding community engagement through partnerships and
enhancing community integration

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and helpful in the working

| group carry out its work:

Vice President for Administration/CFO NCCCAP CBA 2019-21
Director of Financial Operations CSEA CBA 2019-21 -
Bursar - NCCC Mission, Vision, Values
Director of Human Resources , College Senate By-Laws -
Chief Diversity Officer Shared Governance Working Group Doc
Program Worksheets and Sequences Faculty credentials/resumes ]
NCCC Credit Hour Policy NYSED Regulations on faculty credentials

| Curriculum Committee Policy and Redacted Student Observations of Faculty
Procedures

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design] 11



North Country Community College
MSCHE Working Group 4
Standard 1V: Support of the Student Experience

Co-Chairs )

 Kim Irland Dean of Student Life; Chief Diversity Office
Kate Wells Learning Assistance Coordinator — Malone Campus
Members

Brian O'Connor | College Librarian
Bruce Kelly Coordinator of Student Life; Malone Campus Coordinator
Chad LaDue Athletic Director -
Barb Coliier Senior AccountClerk
Jessica Martin Microcomputer Operator

| Sandy Gothard Nursing Director
Student representative
Charge

Lead the College’s efforts in examining, documenting and reporting on North Country CC's
compliance with Standard IV including all criteria. The working group will examine how well
the College 1) “recruits and admifs students whose inferests, abilities, experiences, and goals
are congruent with its mission and educational offerings” and 2) “commits to student
retention, persistence, completion, and success through a coherent and effective support
system sustained by qudiified professionals, which enhances the quality of the learning
environment, confributes to the educational experience, and fosters student success.” The
group will employ an active, open, and evidence-based process that identifies institutional
strengths, challenges, and opportunities for improvement and innovation in relation to those
standards and any institutional priority under their purview.

Standard IV: Support of the Student Experience

Institutional Priority 1 Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in
education and guides the College's daily operations and strategic
planning

Institutional Priority 3 Improving financial sustainability through increasing enroliment and
retention

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and helpful in the working

| group carry out its work:
Academic Policies and Webpage Registrar's Webpage
Admissions Policies and Webpage | Student Life Webpage -
Business Office Policies and Webpage Transfer Policies and Webpage
College Mission, Vision and Values Assoc Director of Enrollment Management
| College Catalog College Registrar and Webpage
FERPA and Related Polices and Webpages | Coordinators of Student Life
Financial Aid Policies and Webpage | Dean of Student Life

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 12



North Country Community College
MSCHE Working Group §
Standard V: Educational Effectiveness Assessment

Co-Chairs

Sarah Shoemaker Assistant Professor of Health Sciences

To Be Filled

Members _

Stacey Mascia-Susice | Professor of Humanities; Humanities Department Chair
Kathleen Dowd- Asst. Professor of Human Services; Human Services Department
Maloney Chair

Marianne Goodfellow | Coordinator, Second Chance Pell -

Rich Martin Asst. Professor of Science o

To Be Filled

Charge

Lead the College's efforts in examining, documenting and reporting on North Country CC's
compliance with Standard V including all criteria. The working group will examine the
College's assessment of student learning and achievement and how well it “demonstrates
that the insfitution's students have accomplished educational goais consistent with their
program of study. degree level, the institution's mission, and appropriate expectations for
institutions of higher education.” The group will employ an active, open, and evidence-
based process that identifies institutional strengths, challenges, and opportunities for
improvement and innovation in relation to those standards and any institutional priority
under their purview.

| Standard V: | Educational Effectiveness Assessment

| Institutional Priority 1 Maintaining a culture of assessment that supports excellence in
education and guides the College’s daily operations and strategic
planning

Institutional Priority 2 ' E_ip_cnc':liﬁg community engagement through partnerships and
enhancing community integration

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and helpful in the working

group carry out its work:

| Academic Department’s Documents College Catalog

Academic Program Assessment Documents | College Mission, Vision and Values __

| Academic Program Worksheets Completion, Persistence and Retention Rates
Academic Program Webpages SUNY General Education Materials
Assessment Master Tracking Spreadsheet Academic Department Chairs

Assessment Related Budget Materials Vice President for Academic Affairs
College Wide-Learning Goals |- -

NCCC MSCHE Seif-Study Design| 13




North Couniry Community College
MSCHE Working Group é
Verification of Compliance and Evidence Inventory

Co-Chairs B
Shelly St. Louis College Registrar
Laurie Muncil Administrative Assistant to the Vice President for Academic Affairs
Members
Mary Ellen Director of Financial Aid
. Chamberlain ]
Scott Harwood Assistant Dean for Institutional Research and Support
McCayla Quinn | Bursar
Brian O'Connor | College Librarian
Stacie Hurwitch Executive Assistant to the President; Evidence Keeper
Charge

Lead the College’s efforts in developing, curating and managing the evidence/
documentation to support the efforts of the working groups in examining, documenting and
reporting on North Country CC's compliance with the seven standards for accreditation.
This working group will also ensure that the College meets the eight requirements associated
with the Verification of Compliance and will work with the relevant parties to assure that
those requirements are met and current,

- # Compliance Areas
1 Student Identity Verification in Distance and Correspondence
Education
2 Transfer of Credit Policies and Arficulation Agreements
3 Title IV Program Responsibilities
4 Institutional Record of Student Complaints -
______ 5 Required Information for Students and the Public -
6 Standing with State and Other Accrediting Agencies
- 7 Conftractual Arrangements -
8 Assignment of Credit Hours

Critical Resources
The following resources, human and otherwise, will be available and heipful in the working
| group carry out its work:

| Academic Affairs Office College Catalog -

| Assistant Dean for Institutional Research & Academic Policies and Webpage
Support _|
Bursar - Admissions Policies and Webpage ]
College Registrar Business Office Policies and Webpage
Dean of Student Life | College Mission, Vision and Values
Financial Aid Director o | College Catalog
Financial Operations Director FERPA and Related Polices and Webpages

| Title IX Coordinator Financial Aid Policies and Webpage ]

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 14




VI. Guidelines for Reporting

Through bi-weekly meetings in the initial stages of the process and monthly meetings
thereafter, the Steering Committee members will share progress, identify concerns,
collaborate around work processes, and clarify next steps. The Steering Committee
members and Working Group chairs will organize the working group schedule according
to the timelines established by the Steering Committee. The Working Group chairs will
organize meetings, communicate fimelines, report on progress at each committee
meeting, and input data and documents into a Blackboard module set up as a shared
space for the self-study. Within this Blackboard module, working group members will have
access to the Evidence Inventory, reporting document templates, and drafts of reports.

Steering Committee/Working Group Process:

1. Steering Committee Co-Chair Duties:

a) Establish Bi-weekly/monthly Meeting Schedule for Steering Committee: At
these meetings, committee members will share progress, identify areas of
concern, collaborate with other committee chairs to improve processes and
avoid redundant work.

b) Create reporting documents including:

1) Outline/guidelines for initial analysis of standard criteria for each working
group

2) List of Evidence Inventory documents

3) Timeline for Working Group Submissions

4) Creation of Blackboard module for Self-Study documents

c) Collate Working Group drafts into a final report: Co-chairs will write the final
document, soliciting input from the College community.

d) Communicate with MSCHE liaison

2. Working Group Chair/Co-Chair Duties:

a) Coordinate and Lead Working Group Meetings: Working Group members will
identify their working schedule in order to meet the timelines set by the Steering
Committee.

b) Liagison to Steering Committee: Co-chairs will identify needs/resources of
respective Working Group and communicate with Steering Committee co-
chairs.

c) Status Updates: Co-chairs will coordinate work and report on progress of
Working Group at Steering Committee meetings

3. Working Group Member Duties:

a) ldentify Standards and Criteria: Identify and evaluate major areas relevant to
each standard and identify how the College is meefting the specified criteria

b) Identify Important Processes: Identify and evaluate major processes relevant
to each standard

c) Provide Recommendations: Identify areas of improvement to enhance how
the College is meeting its mission through each Standard

d) Draft Report: Complete reporting documents according to established
timelines, including a narrative for each section, identifying how the College
meets the criteria with supporting evidence for each assertion.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 15



e) Meelings: Attend Working Group meetings as needed

. Outline for Reports for each Working Group:
a) Overview of the standard and criteria

b) Narrative: Description of criteria for each standard

1. Narrafive for how the College meets each standard with links or
references to supporting documents

2. Clearly documented alignment with institutional priorities, including
mission and strategic directions

3. Completion of criteria grid to map alignment with standards and
evidence of compliance and Requirements of Affiliation (See Appendix
1)

4, |dentification of areas for improvement

c) Conclusion for each section

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 16



The Steering Committee will be responsible for collectively meeting benchmarks by the

following timeline:

Steering Commiftee and Working Groups

Timeline for Reporting

Task

Responsible Parlies

Due Date

Steering Committee Meeting
Schedule

Steering Committee Co-
Chairs

September 13, 2019

Review of Self-Study Design

Steering Commiittee

September 13, 2019

Confirmation of Working Group
members

Working C_;rsu_p Chairs/Co-
Chairs

Week of September 14, 2019

Steering Committee/ W_orking Steering September 24, 2019

Group Meetings with MSCHE Committee/Working

Liaison Groups

Complete template of criteria Workiﬁg Groups September-December 2019

for each standard providing
analysis of MSCHE Standard with
NCCC process/evidence

Identify areas for
improvements/gaps in
standards

' Drafts of Reports according to
each Standard(s)

Working Groﬁps

| Working Groups

| April 3, 2020

January-February 2020

Final Section Reports
Self-Study Report Draft

Working Gro_ups

May 22, 2020

Steering Committee Co-
Chairs

August 17, 2020

College_Review of Self-Study
Report Draft

Steering Committee,
Working Groups, College
Community

August 17-October 16, 2020

Update Final Draft of Self-Study

Steering Committee Co-
Chairs

October 16-December 20, 2020

Uploaded Final Draft of Self-
Study Report

Accreditation Liaison
Office

January 2021

Team Visit

All College

March-April 2021

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 17



VIL

VI,

Organization of the Final Self-Study Report
1. Table of Contents

2. Executive Summary

3. Institutional Overview

4

. Standards | & VI: Mission & Goals, and Planning, Resources, and institutional
Improvement

. Standards Il & VII: Ethics & Integrity, and Governance, Leadership and Administration

. Standard lil: Design and Delivery of the Student Learning Experience

5

6

7. Standard 1V: Support of the Student Experience

8. Standard V: Educational Effectiveness Assessment
9

. Verification of Compliance and Evidence Inventory

10. Conclusion

Verification of Compliance Strategy

As noted above (see Section V for details), there is a separate Working Group (WG #46)
to lead the College’s efforts in developing, curating and managing the
evidence/documentation to support the efforts of the working groups in examining,
documenting and reporting on North Country CC’s compliance with the seven
standards for accreditation. This working group will also ensure that the College meets
the eight requirements associated with the Verification of Compliance and will work
with the relevant parties to assure that those requirements are met and current.

The structure of the Steering Committee includes representation from each Working
Group whereby one Working Group co-chair serves as a member of the Steering
Committee while the other serves as the alternate. This ensures that any issues or
concerns regarding the Verification of Compliance will be addressed and
communicated with each Working Group and the Steering Committee at Steering
Committee meetings. There are opportunities for less formal communication with
members of each group as well.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 18



IX. Self-Study Timetable

Timetable for Self-Study Design and Self-Study

Task

Date

Self-Study Institute

Selection of Self-Study Co-Chairs

November 2018
February 5, 2019 (changes in leadership

| required reconfiguration of co-chairs)

Selection of Working Group Co-Chairs

March 71, 2019 (personal invitation to
working group members from Self-Study
Co-chairs)

Spring 2019

Drafting of Working Groups
Identification of Institutional Priorities and
‘Self-Study Goals

Feb 12t, 2019 open forum
March 2019 College Senate meeting

Self-Study Design Drafting

Summer 2019

Self-Study Launch

August 21, 2019 (changes in College
leadership led to postponing launch from
Spring 19)

Liaison)

September 4, 2019

Self-Study Design Review with Steering
Committee

Recruitment and Filling of Working
Groups

Week of September 9', 2019

‘Week of September 16, 2019

Steering Committee Meeting-wifh MSCHE
Liaison

September 26™, 2019

Self-Study Design Completion

Share Self-Study Design with Ca_mpus
Community

| Week of September 30t, 2019

Week of October 7, 2019

Information and Evidénce-Gathering for
Working Groups

September 2019-January 2020

Drafts of Section Reports from Working Apiril 3, 2020

Groups o |
Final Drafts—Section Reports from May 22, 2020

Working Groups

Self-Study Report Draft

August 17, 2020

College Review of Draft of Self-Study

August 17-October 16, 2020

Update Final Draft of Self-Study

October 16-December 20, 2020

Upload Final Draft Self-Study/Evidence
Inventory (at least six weeks prior to
Team Visit)

January 2021

March-May 2021

Evaluation Team Visit

Verification of Compliance Review and
Update

Ongoing

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 19




X. Communication Pian
Regular updates regarding the progress of the self-study will be communicated via
various avenues at the College including email, SharePoint, all-College Senate
meetings, President’s Council meetings, Academic Chair/Directors meetings,
faculty/staff meetings, regular monthly department meetings, Board of Trustee
meetings, and the College newsletter. Steering Committee and Working Group
members will have access to the Blackboard module to store and access documents
as well as communicate with the Steering Committee and other Working Group
members. Regular communication will occur with our county sponsors through the
President, and community members will be advised via the program and campus
advisory board meetings throughout the duration of the self-study. For more detailed
information, see the communication plan in the table below.

Communication Plan: At each venue below, we will provide progress updates and |
solicit feedback as needed and requested from Steering Committee/Working Groups

Venue Timing for Status Updates
All-College Senate Meetings | Monthly

President’s Council Meetings: | Bi-Weekly

Chairs/Director’'s Meetings Monthly

! Facully Meeiings Twice per semester

' Department Meetings Monthly
' NCCC Association Meeﬁﬁg_s '_Monfhly_

Board of Trustees Meetings Monthly

Emails At least monthly via all campus emails
| Campus Newsletter | Bi-monthly newsletter to the campus and larger
communities
County Sponsors Quarterly updates at regional meetings
Program and Campus Yearly for each program and campus
Advisory Boards
 Blackboard Module Ongoing Access for all Steering Committee/Working

Group members

SharePoint Ongoing for all College community members

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 20



Xl. Evaluation Team Profile

XIl.

The follow are our preferences regarding the ideal composition of the Evaluation Team:

Team Chair: Ideally, the team chair would be from a community college with multiple
campuses with experience as a faculty member and, if possible, in an academic
leadership capacity. A Chief Academic Officer with teaching faculty experience is our
preference.

Peer Evaluators: Given the institutional priorities, it would be helpful to have peer
evaluators who have faced similar challenges in their institutions, namely improving the
infegration of the planning processes with institutional data/research and have
successfully moved their institutions forward with sustainable inifiatives related to
enrollment, completion and student success.

Comparable Institutions: Those institutions that we believe would be comparable
include those who are categorized in the Carnegie classification of Associate's
Colleges: Mixed Transfer/Career & Technical-Mixed Traditional/Nontraditional - Two-
year, small.

Conflict of Interest: it would seem that reviewers from any SUNY community college
could be perceived as a conflict of interest. So, too, would be the reviewers from the
2018 Middle States Small Team Visit.

North Country CC's Top Programs by Enroliment:
¢ Health Sciences (AS/Certificate)
e Liberal Arts (AA: Humanities and Social Science/AS: Math and Science)
e Nursing {AAS Nursing/PN Certificate)
e Human Services (AS Child and Family Services; AAS Chemical Dependency
Counseling; AAS Human Services)

Evidence Inventory

As noted above (see Section V for details), there is a separate Working Group (WG #6)
to lead the College's efforts in developing, curating and managing the
evidence/documentation to support the efforts of the working groups in examining,
documenting and reporting on North Country CC’s compliance with the seven standards
for accreditation. We have also designated a role of “evidence keeper” to one of the
members of Working Group #6, who will be fasked with ensuring that the
documentation/evidence is in alocation that allmembers of the self-study and the larger
campus community can reliably and routinely access. The "evidence keeper” is also a
member of the Steering Committee and thus will be able to work closely with the Steering
Committee and Working Groups in developing, curating and managing the evidence
inventory to best serve their needs.

NCCC MSCHE Self-Study Design| 21



921nosaJ ‘Bujuue|d 03
‘SUONEPUIWWO0INY paie|aJ suoisiap Supjew
Ul saJnjonJys ulusonod
pue ‘}jeis ‘uonensiuiwpe
ispuauanbayy ‘Aynoey aping -p
suonsdIsing

SUORPUIWUW0INYY - o
poq 8uiuiano

2y3 Aq payioddns

spuawdainbayy pue panosdde aue 2

:suonsaddIng

1SUOEPUIUIU0IIY
S312U3N}ISUOD pue
SIX93U03 [BUIDIUI SE ||2M

:sjudurdainboy SE [eUIIIXI SSAIPPE 'q
Juswanosdwi)

pue juawdo|aAap

SU0NSISING |euolInIsul 104

3|gisuodsal asimIaylo
9Je 10 1|08}
SSUOYEPUI W 0IDY oym [|e Aq uonedianied
aAjleIOqE||0D
?1endoidde
syusuambay ySnouyy padojanap aJe ‘e

1ey3 s|eos pue uolssiw
paulep Aj4ea)d '

sanLIoLd
yusurdAoaduy [euonymypsuy UOISSTA]
10J seapy | uerpduwo)) Jo RUIPIAY 0} Jurg 0) Yury

STVOD 8 NOISSIA | QUYANYLS HO- VINALIHD

BLIAJLID-qNS ELIAJLI) pAepuEe)s

I xpuaddy



:suopsadang

SUONEPUIWHIOINY
paien|eAd
:spuawaambayy Ajjesipoisad aie -3
:SuonsIFing
ISUONBPUITHIO0INY siap|oyaxels
|eUld3u} S, Uo1INUISUI
9y1 Aq umou| Ajlapim
sjusudanbay pue pazidignd aJe °}
:suonsadong
uoinnsul
2y1 01 aelidoudde
:SUOIIBP UMWY adA} ayy Jo pue
S|oA3| 1k ‘AlIAI1DR BA11R3ID
pue Alinbu) Ajsejoyos
ssjuswAInbay Jo noddns apnpul 3
S3WO2INO |BUOI1BINPI
pue jeuonniisul
Jo uonluysp sy pue
1SuoNSITING Juawdo|anap Jejnatund

pue weJs8oid ‘uonedo|e

STVOD B NOISSHA *t GUVANVLS HOd4 Vid3LIHD




LACTATION ACCOMMODATION POLICY

POLICY SUMMARY

North Country Community College supports working mothers and provides a supportive environment to
enable employees who are breastfeeding to express breastmilk during working hours.

SCOPE

All North Country Community College employees.

POLICY

No employee will be discriminated against for breastfeeding or expressing milk during the work day and
reasonable efforts will be made to assist employees in meeting their infant feeding goals while at work.

Employees who are breastfeeding who choose to continue providing breastmilk to their infants after returning to
work will receive the following accommodations for up to three years following the child’s birth:

Lactation Breaks

Employees will be provided reasonable time to express milk while at work. While employees are
encouraged use their typical break and meal periods when possible, should additional time be needed
beyond the provided breaks, employees may use benefit time or may make up the time as agreed to with
their supervisor.

Employees should notify their supervisor prior to returning to work to set up a schedule that accommodates
their needs and those of the College. Once a schedule is agreed upon, every effort to adhere to the schedule
must be made.

Lactation Room(s)
Employees will be provided with a private place, other than a bathroom, that is shielded from view and free

from intrusion from co-workers and students, to express milk. Expressed milk can be stored in the provided
refrigerator or in the employee’s personal cooler. The space will be:

Private and sanitary.
Located in close proximity to the employee’s work station and a sink with running water.

Equipped with a functional lock.
Equipped with, at a minimum, an electrical outlet, a comfortable chair and a small table or

flat surface.

AV NN

Original: 9/26/2019
Revised: 10/17/2019



e College Support
Human Resources will notify employees who are pregnant and those returning to work following the birth
of a child of their rights under New York State Labor Law 206-c and the national worksite lactation
accommodation law in the U.S. Patient Affordable Care Act. A list of local breastfeeding resources will be
provided to employees who are breastfeeding and returning to work. The College will implement policies
and practices that will help facilitate each employee’s infant feeding goals. It is expected that all employees
will assist in providing a positive atmosphere of support for breastfeeding employees.

¢ Employee Responsibilities
Employees who are breastfeeding and who choose to continue providing breastmilk to their infants after
returning to work will:

v" Communicate with their supervisor — Employees will give their supervisor advanced notice
of the need for lactation accommodations, prior to their return to work.

v" Maintain lactation rooms — Employees who are breastfeeding will maintain the designated
areas by wiping surfaces with antimicrobial wipes so the area is clean for the next user.

v’ Safely store expressed milk — Employees will label all expressed milk so it is not
inadvertently confused with another employee’s milk. Each employee is responsible for
proper storage of her milk. Storage guidelines can be provided if requested.

v" Use break times to express milk — When more than one employee who is breastfeeding needs
to use the designated area, employees can use the sign-in log provided in the room to
negotiate expression times that are most convenient to best meet their needs.

Any act found to be intentional that invades a nursing mother’s privacy and rights will be reported and treated
as a disciplinary offense.

For more information, visit:

New York State Labor Law Section 2006-c;
https://labor.ny.cov/formsdocs/wp/LS702.pdf

United States Department of Labor Break Time for Nursing Mothers Section 7 of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA):
https://www.dol.cov/whd/nursingmothers/

Original: 9/26/2019
Revised: 10/17/2019



